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MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF
October 10, 2012 and January 16, 2013

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
October 10, 2012 – 5:00 p.m.
Marsh Hall, Room 210, Central Campus, Loring Avenue
Salem State University
Salem, Massachusetts
- AGENDA I.

Call to Order

II.

Approval of Minutes – June 6 and September 19, 2012

III. Reports


Consent Agenda: Approval of Committee Reports .................. President Meservey



Audit – Action Needed ........................................................ Trustee Ansara



Finance & Facilities – Action Needed ..................................... Trustee Quiroga



Presidential Review – Action Needed ....................................... Trustee Abdoo



Executive – Action Needed ...................................................... Chair Scott

IV. Report of the President
V.

Report of the Chairman

VI. Old Business
VII. New Business


Recognition of 2012 University Retirees – Action ................... President Meservey



Salem State University Assistance Corporation – Discussion ....... President Meservey



Special Topics: Industry Trends – Discussion ................................. Chair Scott

VIII. Open Forum
IX. Adjournment

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
October 10, 2012

PRESENT: Trustees Abdoo (Vice Chair), Ansara, Bertrand, Davis, Lancome, Quiroga, Scott
(Chair), Segal, and Villa; President Meservey; Executive Vice President Cahill and Secretary to the
Board Fleischman.
ABSENT: Trustees Berkowitz and Mattera
Individuals also present and participating in the meeting: Provost and Vice President for Academic
Affairs Kristin Esterberg; Vice President for Finance & Facilities Andrew Soll.
The provisions of General Laws, Chapter 30A, having been complied with and a quorum of the
Board being present, the Board of Trustees of Salem State University held a meeting in Marsh
Hall, Room 210, Central Campus, Loring Avenue, Salem, Massachusetts, on October 10, 2012,
with Pamela C. Scott, Chair, presiding.
*
I.

*

*

CALL TO ORDER

Call to Order

Chair Scott called the meeting to order at 5:02 p.m.
*
II.

*

*

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chair Scott asked for any changes or corrections to the minutes from the meetings held on June 6
and September 19, 2012; there being none, she also asked for a motion to approve the minutes.

Approval of
Minutes

Upon a motion duly made by Trustee Bertrand and seconded by Trustee Abdoo, it was
VOTED:
To approve the Minutes of June 6 and September 19, 2012. (MN-13-01)
*
III.

*

*

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Consent Agenda: Chair Scott began by introducing the use of the consent agenda for addressing
routine items at board meetings. She brought the board’s attention to the list of items included on
the consent agenda currently before them (Attachment A) and read the list aloud. She then asked if
there were any items that should be removed from the consent agenda for further discussion. There
being none, the chair asked for a motion to accept the consent agenda.
Upon a motion duly made by Trustee Villa and seconded by Trustee Segal, it was unanimously
VOTED:
To accept the Consent Agenda as presented (CA-13-01)
Chair Scott noted that she would like to add the meeting minutes to the committee reports on the
consent agenda at future meetings. Trustee Segal asked the chair to review the work done at the
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committee level that provides the items contained on the consent agenda. Chair Scott described
how the bulk of deliberation occurs at the committee level. She also described the committee
structure, the scheduling of committee business weeks in advance of the full board meetings and
the committee liaisons that coordinate with the trustee committee chairs. She finally drew the
board’s attention to the material circulated by the president that explained the consent agenda and
its usage (Attachment B).
Trustee Davis inquired whether a member could ask for an item to be removed from the consent
agenda if he/she were not present. The chair responded that a member, upon reviewing the
materials for the meeting, could express a desire that an item be removed from the consent agenda
and discussed at greater length during the meeting; however, the member could not vote on the
acceptance of that item without officially participating in the meeting either in person or remotely
(i.e.: no proxy voting).

Audit: Trustee Ansara reported on the results of the FY2012 audit. The committee met earlier that
week. There were two audits conducted: the first was the annual audit of the university’s financials
and the second was a first-time A-133 audit of the university’s use of federal funds. The annual
audit generally went very well; there were two minor findings related to the A-133 audit. The
committee recommended acceptance of the audits, which then opened the topic for discussion.
Trustee Quiroga asked for more detail on the two findings. President Meservey explained that one
matter involved reporting time for students on work study and resulted from a conflict in state and
federal requirements. The second finding was related to documentation associated with a student’s
withdrawal or taking of a leave of absence. In the sample reviewed, one student did not have the
proper federal documentation. Policies and training have been put in place to ensure this issue will
not happen again. The president noted that the annual audit was completed without findings.

Report of the
Audit Committee

With regard to the first matter, there was discussion of the collective problem faced by our sister
institutions and one that has reoccurred over the years among them. The trustees felt that Salem
State should work with the other universities to address the conflict between the federal and state
regulations.
Upon a motion, duly made by Trustee Davis and seconded by Trustee Villa, it was unanimously
VOTED:
The Board of Trustees of Salem State University hereby accepts the Salem
State University Financial Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. (AU-13-01)
Upon a motion, duly made by Trustee Villa and seconded by Trustee Segal, it was unanimously
VOTED:
The Board of Trustees of Salem State University hereby accepts the Salem
State University A-133 audit of federal programs for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012. (AU-13-02)

Finance & Facilities: The chair invited Trustee Quiroga to report on the committee meeting of
September 19, 2012. The primary item of business before the board was the final general
operations budget for fiscal year 2012-2013. Trustee Quiroga, in comparing the final version with
the pro forma approved at the June 6th meeting, noted that the changes were due to a change in the
funding allocation from the state and related to collective bargaining. She referred the board to the
report of the Finance & Facilities Committee from the meeting of September 19, 2012. Vice
President Soll explained that the assumptions of the pro forma were correct; the legislature
approved the expected budget initially proposed by the governor. The change in allocation is the
result of additional funding to cover mandatory increases as a result of collective bargaining.
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Upon a motion, duly made by Trustee Quiroga and seconded by Trustee Abdoo, it was
unanimously
VOTED:
The Board of Trustees of Salem State University hereby approves the Fiscal
Year 2012-13 General Operations Budget as recommended by the president and
described in Exhibit 1-A of the report of the Finance & Facilities Committee,
with revenues and expenses balanced in the amount of $103 million. The
president and other officers of the university are hereby authorized to do all
things and take all actions necessary to implement the budget and protect the
fiscal health of the university. (FF-13-01)

Presidential Review: Trustee Abdoo described the activity of the ad hoc committee to date and its
three meetings to date since August 21, 2012. He outlined the document under discussion
(Attachment A of the committee report of the meeting of October 3, 2012). Trustee Abdoo added
that, in addition to producing the annual review required by the MA Department of Higher
Education, the committee is working on a 5-year, comprehensive review of the president as well as
working collaboratively with the president to rework the annual review format.

Report of the
Presidential
Review
Committee

Trustee Lancome inquired about the direction and role of the five-year review process. In light of
past and present positive reviews, he asked what the rationale is for using outside consultants.
Trustee Abdoo described the review of outside consultants currently underway. Chair Scott added
that additional data and metrics will be a part of the annual review process. The five-year review is
separate from the annual review process and will have a different scope and focus. Trustee
Quiroga noted that the annual review looks at goals and whether we are meeting those goals. The
comprehensive review looks at the strengths of our leader and speaks to our ability to meet those
goals; the consultant can help identify strengths and challenges for the leaders and work in
collaboration with the president and the board. Trustee Segal added that the comprehensive review
provides the opportunity to bring in additional perspectives from the university community than are
present in the annual review. President Meservey noted that the business community and the
Board of Higher Education would also likely be included in that discussion.
Upon a motion, duly made by Trustee Abdoo and seconded by Trustee Segal, it was unanimously
VOTED:
The Board of Trustees of Salem State University hereby accepts the AY2012
annual review of President Patricia Maguire Meservey as presented by the
Presidential Review Committee. (PRV-13-01)
Upon a motion, duly made by Trustee Abdoo and seconded by Trustee Quiroga, it was
unanimously
VOTED:
The Board of Trustees of Salem State University hereby recommends to the
Massachusetts Department of Higher Education a 3% adjustment to President
Patricia Maguire Meservey’s compensation effective July 1, 2012 in recognition
of meritorious effort. (PRV-13-02)

Executive Committee: Chair Scott reviewed the proposed By-Law changes for consideration
(Attachment A of the Executive Committee report of August 21, 2012). The most significant
changes under consideration included: reducing the number of regularly scheduled full board
meetings from five to four and the number of committees from six to five through the consolidation
of the academic affairs and student life committees; the appointment of non-trustees to serve on
committees to expand board capacity; committee name changes as well as the expansion of their
charges. President Meservey highlighted two edits regarding the charge for the Academic Affairs
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and Student Life Committee that were suggested by Trustee Segal at the August meeting. The first
involved the restoration of language related to the oversight of athletics and health services in the
charge. The second recommendation regarded language authorizing the committee to undertake
official inquiries related to student grievances. Since current judicial and academic policy requires
adjudication involving students to terminate with the provost or dean of student life, implying
otherwise in the bylaws would be incorrect. The president offered the following alternative
language to be inserted: “To conduct such inquiries as may be necessary with respect to student
matters not of a judicial or academic nature and to report its findings and recommendations to the
Board.” The president suggested alternate language that reflected the current policies of the
institution.
Trustee Segal agreed with the recommended wording, but raised the possibility that a situation
could arise that directly involved the president that would require board attention. He asked how
the board would come to be aware of such a situation. The board secretary noted that as had
occurred a few years ago with the situation involving a disgruntled employee who had lodged a
complaint against the president with the Board office, it would be the board staff’s responsibility to
convey student grievance information to the Board Chair for appropriate follow up
Chair Scott finally noted the addition of litigation review to the responsibilities of the Executive
Committee and on an ongoing monitoring basis for the Risk Management and Audit Committee.
She noted the addition of remote participation capability in the updated bylaws and outlined the 30day review period followed for the proposed by-law changes.
Upon a motion, duly made by Trustee Ansara and seconded by Trustee Quiroga, it was
unanimously
VOTED:
The Board of Trustees of Salem State University hereby adopts the By Laws
of Salem State University as amended (Attachment C). (EX-13-01)

*
IV.

*

*

REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT

- President Meservey began her report by thanking the Board for its support through its vote on the
annual presidential review. She then went on to provide an update on the campus campaign. She
reported that the Campus Campaign had received support from nearly 60% of full-time employees,
both faculty and staff in the form of donations and commitments. She acknowledged Campus
Campaign leaders Professor Amy Everitt and Assistant Dean Nate Bryant and the Campus
Campaign Committee which has surpassed its goal of $1,153, 000. She also acknowledged
Campaign Manager Cheryl Crounse. The success of this portion of the overall campaign will be
celebrated at an event on October 20, 2012 at the Coco Keys Hotel in Danvers for campus
campaign contributors.
- Personnel updates since the end of the previous academic year included Tom Torello, vice
president of marketing and communications; Gene Labonte, chief of police; Judy Cramer, director
of financial aid; and Lauren Hubacheck, director of career services. The president also noted the
following promotions and changes in responsibilities: Scott James has been named vice president
of enrollment management and student life; and Executive Vice President Stan Cahill has accepted
the assignment of developing the university’s new risk management program.
- Enrollment update: the president reported the university welcomed nearly 1,200 freshmen last
month, and just over 700 transfer students. Enrollment, however, is down overall slightly,
primarily on the graduate level. She described the new marketing efforts for graduate programs
launched in late August. We are also looking at internal opportunities to expand offerings.
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- Facilities update: the Library and Learning Commons is progressing; it is now enclosed and the
terra cotta is being placed on the exterior. It is slated to open in Fall, 2013. She also recounted the
enthusiastic response to the announcement of the naming of the facility for Senator Fred Berry at
the senator’s retirement event in September. The president reported on work now underway on the
Fitness and Recreation Center. Mainstage Theatre renovations are still being pursued.
- President Meservey brought the board’s attention to funds contained in the 2008 capital bond bill
that the university would like to see allocated for use on a new science and academic building.
These funds would not be sufficient to complete a project in its entirety but would be a significant
start and one that we would like to utilize if available to us. This topic will be part of future
agendas for board discussion.
- The president reminded the board of the upcoming Agganis Forum with SMS alumna Julie Palen
as the keynote speaker on October 24, 2012.
- There will be a series of “Think Pink” events at athletics events on campus throughout the year in
support of breast cancer research.
- President Meservey confirmed that former Red Sox manager Bobby Valentine will be the speaker
at the Speakers Series on November 8, 2012.
- The president updated the board on the ongoing investigation of the recent fire that occurred in
Atlantic Hall. She acknowledged efforts of residence life and public safety staff.
- Board staff is pursuing an electronic portal for dissemination of board materials and hopes to have
options identified by the next full set of meetings.
- The president raised the existence of a legal matter to be discussed in executive session. There
was discussion about going into executive session at that point to discuss the pending legal matter.
Trustee Quiroga made a motion, which Trustee Ansara seconded, to go into executive session;
however, Trustee Lancome suggested that moving the session to the end of the agenda would be
more efficient for the individuals in attendance. Trustees Quiroga and Ansara agreed to table their
motion until later in the meeting.

*
V.

*

*

REPORT OF THE CHAIR

Chair Scott reported on being involved in many activities since taking the gavel: convocation,
ground breaking for Fitness Center on 9/18/12, Annual Fund celebration on 9/27/12, Board of
Overseers event on 10/2/12. She thanked Trustees Bertrand, Mattera and Quiroga for attending the
AGB regional session and described her interaction with staff from Iona University and trustees
from UMass/Dartmouth. Trustee Quiroga added congratulations to President Meservey for her
presentation on the panel, which the chair seconded. Chair Scott welcomed Trustee Lancome to
his first meeting and expressed the good wishes of the board. She concluded by expressing her
eagerness at celebrating with the campus community the success of the campus campaign at the
upcoming event on October 20, 2012.

*
VI.

*

Report of
the Chair

*
Old
Business

OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.
*

*
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VII.

NEW BUSINESS

Recognition of 2012 University Retirees: Chair Scott read a resolution recognizing those
members of the university community who had retired in 2012:
RESOLVED:
“The success of Salem State University is built upon the dedicated efforts of its faculty and staff.
The following members of our community have retired within the past year with a combined 308
years of service to the institution. The Board of Trustees and the university administration would
like to express its gratitude and sincere best wishes to these individuals for their many contributions
to the life and future of Salem State:
Margaret T. Andrews; Librarian Emeritus; Library, Instructional and Learning Support
Mary S. Benda; Director; Financial Aid
Mary Debski; Receiving Teller; Financial Services
Cheryl D. Ennis; Administrative Assistant II; Transfer Admissions
Warren Gray; Staff Associate; Energy & Utilities
Paula Griffin; Personnel Analyst II; Human Resources & Equal Opportunity
Linda Jones; Assistant Dean; Counseling and Health Services
Ronald H. Klausewitz; Associate Professor; Computer Science Department
Paul D. Marsella; Professor; History Department
John W. McHale; Professor; English Department
Maureen McRae; Professor; School of Nursing
Margaret A. Muise; Staff Assistant; Counseling and Health Services
John Nicolosi; Steam Fireman II; Energy & Utilities
Carol L. Owen; Associate Professor; School of Social Work”
Upon a motion, duly made by Trustee Lancome and seconded by Trustee Abdoo, it was
unanimously
VOTED:
To accept the resolution recognizing the members of the Salem State
University community who had retired in 2012. (NB-13-01)
Salem State University Assistance Corporation: (Attachment D) President Meservey explained
the opportunities that SSUAC provides for the university to expand the campus and to provide
educational programming. With the resignation of SSUAC board member Joel Whitman, the
Salem State University board has an appointment to make. There are also two gubernatorial
appointments that are currently open. She stated that input on these appointees would be welcome.
The Executive Committee will bring forward the Salem State appointees while the president will
gather recommendations for the gubernatorial appointments. Trustee Villa suggested that the
appointees be beyond Salem in scope, with a North Shore perspective. There will be additional
follow up at future committee meetings.
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Special topics: Industry Trends: (Attachment E) Chair Scott and President Meservey reviewed
pertinent highlights of the 2011 and 2012 annual meetings of the Association of Governing Boards
(AGB).
Among the sessions at the 2011 conference covered by Chair Scott was the Opening Plenary on
foreign policy, focusing on higher education in an international context. The speaker, James
Fallows of the Atlantic magazine, discussed the still strong U.S. talent pool, despite challenges,
relative to the rest of the world. Chair Scott also reviewed a session on challenges faced by today’s
governance moderated by Ray Suarez of The News Hour on PBS. This session described the
choices facing trustees with regard to institutional survival and touched on the determination of
board composition in public institutions, changing demographics and how to allocate resources
accordingly. Her next review was of a session on the presence of women on boards and in the
president’s office. The bottom line of this presentation was that women are making strides in
corporate involvement at the board and presidential level, but it still doesn’t match enrollment
levels in higher education. She also shared that succession planning between presidents and
provosts has not been embraced in higher education, forcing female provosts to move elsewhere to
attain higher office. Another session reviewed by Chair Scott focused on federal education policy
and called on higher education to step up to develop solutions and shape policy rather than wait to
passively receive it from the government. Finally, in a session on engaging boards in overseeing
academic quality, the distinction was drawn between ratings and quality. According to Senior
AGB Fellow Thomas Longin, boards do not spend the time or resources to effectively oversee
education quality. Trustees need to understand the academic programs, know what accreditation
means and have hard data that demonstrate academic goals are being met.
President Meservey reviewed sessions of the 2012 AGB conference, beginning with a discussion of
the Innovative University. She cited an article by Harvard Professor Clay Christiansen on fostering
board innovation (Attachment F) and the theory of market disruption in which new innovations fill
voids in existing markets. She used the U.S. auto industry as an example of an industry that did not
keep pace with the needs and wants of its customers; specifically as it got behind the curve in the
development and production of energy efficient cars. In higher education, for-profit providers are
now filling a void by providing education to students for whom traditional campuses are not a
viable option and are providing it at a lower cost. Traditional institutions need to provide high
quality, affordable, accessible higher education.
The president also distributed a Sample Board of Trustees Scorecard (Attachment G) and discussed
using dashboards and metrics as potential strategic performance measures for utilization by the
board and herself. The dashboard could include student, academic, financial, fundraising, staff and
faculty, and/or institutional positioning data. She then reviewed five categories of risk
management: strategic, operational, compliance, governance and reputational. She concluded her
presentation with a review of a case currently under review by the U.S. Supreme Court: Fisher v.
Texas (Attachment H). This case challenges the current standards for affirmative action and may
affect an institution’s ability to utilize any race/ethnicity considerations in making admissions
decisions. Salem State does not utilize such considerations in its admissions decisions.
(Note: Trustee Villa left the meeting at 6:45 pm)
Trustee Ansara stated he felt the score card could be helpful. President Meservey said she would
solicit board feedback on the metrics they would like included when developing such a
performance tool.
*

*
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VIII.

OPEN FORUM

Chair Scott opened the meeting to questions and comments from the floor. Trustee Abdoo noted
that Salem State Alumni Tom Thibodeau, coach of the Chicago Bulls, had just been given a
monumental contract extension, and that he is one of the best coaches in the country – a point of
pride for the institution.

ew
Open
Business
Forum

Chair Scott then announced that the Board would go into Executive Session to discuss the Legal
Case originally raised during the President’s Report. She asked for a motion for the Board to go
into Executive Session. The Board would reconvene to adjourn following the conclusion of the
Executive Session.
Upon a motion duly made by Trustee Quiroga and seconded by Trustee Ansara it was unanimously
VOTED:
To adjourn to Executive Session at 6:50 pm.
Voting in the affirmative: Abdoo, Ansara, Bertrand, Davis, Lancome, Quiroga, Scott, Segal
Voting against: None
When the Board had completed its discussion, it voted to come out of Executive Session.
Upon a motion duly made by Trustee Segal and seconded by Trustee Ansara it was unanimously
VOTED:
To come out of Executive Session at 7:25 pm.
Voting in the affirmative: Abdoo, Ansara, Bertrand, Davis, Lancome, Quiroga, Scott, Segal
Voting against: None
*
IX.

*

*

ADJOURNMENT
Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the Board and on a motion duly made by Trustee
Davis and seconded by Trustee Abdoo, it was unanimously
VOTED:

To adjourn the meeting at 7:25 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Patricia Maguire Meservey
President

Jean E. Fleischman
Secretary to the Board of Trustees
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ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Consent Agenda, 10/10/12
Attachment B: “The Consent Agenda: A Tool for Improving Governance”
published by Board Source, © 2006; with accompanying cover email
Attachment C: Revised Salem State University Board of Trustees By
Laws adopted 10/10/12
Attachment D: Salem State University Assistance Corporation overview
Attachment E: Association of Governing Boards conference topics
PowerPoint utilized jointly by Chair Scott and President Meservey
Attachment F: “How Can Boards Foster Innovative Institutions?” by
Clayton M. Christensen and Henry J. Eyring, Trusteeship.
November/December 2012.
Attachment G: Association of Governing Board’s University of Cincinnati
President’s Scorecard and Trustees’ Scorecard.
Attachment H: “What You Need to Know About Fisher v. Texas,”
Chronicle of Higher Education, October 10, 2012.
Attachment I (not referenced in minutes): Significant Media Coverage
from July 1 to October 10, 2012, distributed at meeting.

Minutes from the
Meeting of
October 10, 2012
Salem State University
Board of Trustees

Attachment A

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
October 10, 2012 – 5:00 p.m.
Marsh Hall, Room 210, Central Campus, Loring Avenue
Salem State University
Salem, Massachusetts
Items for inclusion on Consent Agenda:
Approval of the reports of the following committees:
- Audit Committee: June 6, August 10 and October 9, 2012
- Finance & Facilities Committee: September 19, 2012
- Presidential Review Committee: August 21, September 19 and October 3, 2012
- Executive Committee: August 21, 2012

10/10/12, Attachment B

10/10/12, Attachment B

10/10/12, Attachment B

10/10/12, Attachment B

10/10/12, Attachment B

10/10/12, Attachment B

10/10/12, Attachment B

10/10/12, Attachment B

10/10/12, Attachment B

10/10/12, Attachment B

10/10/12, Attachment C
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES
SALEM STATE UNIVERSITY
The Salem State University Board of Trustees is established and responsibilities defined by
the General Laws of Massachusetts, as referenced at the end of this document.
ARTICLE 1: ORGANIZATION AND OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
SECTION 1: COMPOSITION AND FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD. The composition,
functions, duties, powers and responsibilities of the Board of Trustees, its committees, or
subcommittees, shall be as provided and authorized by the laws of the Commonwealth as in
effect from time to time, subject to such rules, regulations, policies or guidelines as the Board of
Higher Education may, from time to time, adopt, amend or repeal for the management, control,
administration, or regulation of the system of public higher education, or any part thereof.

SECTION 2: BOARD MEMBERSHIP. The Board of Trustees shall consist of eleven
members, one of whom shall be an alumnus of Salem State University; one member to be elected
thereto by the Alumni Association of Salem State University who shall serve a term of five
years; and one full-time undergraduate student member to be elected by the student body
annually.
The members appointed by the Governor shall serve for a term of five years, but no member
shall be appointed for more than two consecutive terms. Succeeding appointments shall be made
for five year terms and any vacancy on the Board shall be filled for the duration of the term, in
the same manner as the prior appointment. The Chair shall notify the Governor when any
vacancy exists.
The term of office for the elected student member shall be for one year beginning on July 1
following his/her election. The student member shall be eligible for re-election for as long as said
student remains a full-time undergraduate student. If at any time during the elected term of office
said student member ceases to be a full-time undergraduate student, the membership of said
student on the Board shall be terminated and the office of the elected student member shall be
deemed vacant. A vacancy in the office of the elected student member prior to the expiration of a
term shall be filled for the remainder of the term in the same manner as student elections to full
terms, except in the case of the trustee’s graduation from the university. Per MGL Ch. 15A, Sect.
21, if a successor trustee has been selected by the student body at the time of the trustee’s
graduation from the institution, the successor may assume the seat of the student trustee upon the
latter’s graduation.
The members of the Board recognize and acknowledge that, by taking up their appointments as
such, they have assumed an obligation, fiduciary in its nature, to conduct themselves, to exercise
their authorities and to discharge their responsibilities for the benefit of the University and of
those whom it serves and not for any other purpose. They also therefore recognize and
acknowledge that it is both necessary and appropriate for all members of the Board to be regular
in their attendance at meetings of the Board and at meetings of the committees on which they
1
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serve, to assume an equitable share of the responsibilities that fall to members of the Board
individually, to inform themselves concerning the University’s mission and purpose and to
commit themselves to promoting the University’s success in its efforts to provide an excellent
and accessible education to its students.

SECTION 3: OFFICERS OF THE BOARD. The elected officers of the Board of Trustees
shall be a Chair and a Vice Chair. Each officer shall have the duties, functions, powers and
responsibilities of her/his office as prescribed by the laws of the Commonwealth, these Bylaws,
and parliamentary custom.
Such officers shall be elected by the Board of Trustees at its annual meeting in June, upon
nomination by the Nominating Committee as provided in Article Ill, Section 2, or otherwise, and
they shall hold office for a term of one year commencing on the first day of July, or until their
respective successors are elected. The Chair and Vice Chair of the Board shall be Trustees.
The President of the University shall also be an officer of the Board of Trustees, ex officio, nonvoting and shall have such duties, functions, powers and responsibilities as the Board of Trustees
may from time to time prescribe consistent with the laws of the Commonwealth.

SECTION 4: THE CHAIR OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES. The Chair of the Board of
Trustees shall have the following powers and duties:
(a) To preside at all meetings of the Board of Trustees at which s/he is present. In her/his
absence, the Vice Chair of the Board shall preside. In the absence of both, a chair pro
tempore shall be elected.
(b) To call regular and special meetings of the Board of Trustees.
(c) To serve as Chair of the Executive Committee.
(d) To serve as an ex officio voting member of all standing committees of the Board of
Trustees.
(e) To appoint Standing Committees, Nominating Committee, and other special committees
of the Board of Trustees, and the Chair thereof. All committee assignments shall be coterminus with the Chair.
(f) To appoint successor members and the chairs of standing committees, other than the
Executive Committee, in the event that for any reason a vacancy occurs in any such
office. A successor so appointed shall serve until the next June 30th.
(g) To appoint substitute members and chairs of standing committees, other than the
Executive Committee, in the event that any such member or chairs thereof declares
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her/his inability to serve for any period. A substitute so appointed shall serve during such
inability.

SECTION 5: THE VICE CHAIR OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES. The Vice Chair of the
Board of Trustees shall have the following powers and duties:
(a) To perform all duties of the Chair of the Board of Trustees at her/his request or in case of
her/his absence or incapacity.
(b) To serve as a member of the Executive Committee.

SECTION 6: THE SECRETARY. The secretary shall have the following duties:
(a) To give written or electronic notice of all regular and special meetings of the Board of
Trustees and of special committees thereof, and to compile and distribute agendas
therefor.
(b) To record the proceedings and to prepare minutes of the meetings of the Board of
Trustees.
(c) To preserve all documents, papers and records of the Board of Trustees determined by
the Secretary to be a part of its official records or necessary to the performance of its
duties.
(d) To conduct correspondence on behalf of the Board of Trustees and to certify official
documents and proceedings.
(e) To perform duties, not inconsistent with those prescribed by these Bylaws or by the
Board of Trustees, as prescribed from time to time by the Chair of the Board of Trustees
or the President of the University.
(f) The Secretary to the Board of Trustees shall be an employee of Salem State University
who is appointed by the President of the University and approved by the Chair of the
Board of Trustees.
(g) An Assistant Secretary to the Board of Trustees shall also be appointed by the President
of the University and approved by the Chair of the Board of Trustees. The Assistant
Secretary shall be an employee of Salem State University whose responsibilities will be
to assist the Secretary and to support the Board in the absence of the Secretary.
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ARTICLE II: MEETINGS OF THE BOARD.
SECTION 1: ANNUAL AND REGULAR MEETINGS. Four regular meetings, including the
annual meeting, shall be held unless otherwise determined by the Board of Trustees. The time
and place of such meetings shall be fixed by the Chair of the Board of Trustees in consultation
with the President with the exception of the annual meeting to be held in June of each year. All
meetings shall be held within the Commonwealth.

SECTION 2: SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of the Board of Trustees may be held
at any time and place within the Commonwealth when called by the Chair of the Board of
Trustees or the President of the University or by three Trustees in writing or electronically given
to the President specifying the purpose(s) of said meeting. The time and place of such meeting
shall be fixed by the Chair of the Board of Trustees in consultation with the President. Notice of
such meeting shall be sent to each Trustee as early as possible in advance of the meeting, which
notice shall state the time, place, and purpose(s) for which it has been called.

SECTION 3: NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETINGS. Written or electronic notice of each
regular meeting of the Board of Trustees shall be sent to each Trustee by mail at least seven days
prior to the date fixed for said meeting, which notice shall state the time and place.

SECTION 4: AGENDA OF REGULAR BOARD MEETINGS. A written agenda of matters
to be considered at each regular meeting of the Board of Trustees shall be sent to each Trustee by
mail at least five days prior to the date fixed for said meetings.
Items to be included on the agenda for a regular meeting shall be submitted to the President in
writing or electronically by (a) recommendation of a standing or other committee of the Board of
Trustees, (b) the Chair of the Board of Trustees.
No item shall be included on the agenda for a regular meeting except upon consideration and
recommendation by a standing or other committee of the Board of Trustees; provided, that at any
regular meeting the Chair of the Board of Trustees and the President of the University, and any
Trustee upon majority vote of said Board, shall be entitled to present matters to the Board of
Trustees for its consideration without prior reference to a committee.

SECTION 5: QUORUM. The number of Trustees necessary to constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business shall be six. When a quorum is present at any meeting, a majority of the
Trustees present may take action on behalf of the Trustees, except that an affirmative vote of
two-thirds of the entire voting membership of the Board is required for the appointment or
removal of the President of the University.
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SECTION 6: EXECUTIVE SESSIONS. Unless the Board shall otherwise direct at any time
or from time to time, executive sessions of the Board will include the Trustees and the president
and shall be convened and conducted in conformity with the state’s Open Meeting Law. Other
individuals may be invited to attend an executive session in order to give information or advice
as deemed necessary or appropriate by the Board. The topics and purposes of executive sessions
shall be limited to those matters permitted by the state’s open-meeting law.

SECTION 7: REMOTE PARTICIPATION. Under the Massachusetts Open Meeting Law,
Gen. Laws c.30A, sect.18-25, members of public bodies may participate in public meetings
remotely via the use of technology under prescribed circumstances. These circumstances
include: 1) personal illness; 2) personal disability; 3) emergency; 4) military service; or 5)
geographic distance. A member wishing to participate remotely must first receive a
determination from the secretary that one of the above requirements has been met. For the
meetings to proceed, the chair of the convening body – or his/her replacement – must be
present and a quorum must exist in the meeting location. Votes taken during meetings
where there is remote participation shall be by roll call.
SECTION 8: RULES OF PROCEDURE. Business before the Board shall be conducted
according to the latest edition of Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedures by the
American Institute of Parliamentarians when not inconsistent with these bylaws unless
otherwise provided in these By-Laws or by the Board.
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ARTICLE III: COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES.
SECTION 1: STANDING COMMITTEES. There shall be five standing committees of the
Board of Trustees: (1) Executive Committee, (2) Academic Affairs and Student Life, (3) Finance
and Facilities, (4) Institutional Advancement, Marketing and Communications, and (5) Risk
Management and Audit.

SECTION 2: NOMINATING AND OTHER SPECIAL COMMITTEES. There shall be a
Nominating Committee of the Board of Trustees, whose members shall consist of such Trustees
as may be appointed by the Chair of the Board of Trustees and who shall serve until the next
annual meeting. The Board of Trustees may establish other special committees from time to time
to have such duties as it may determine, the members of which shall be appointed by the Chair of
the Board of Trustees.

SECTION 3: MEMBERS OF COMMITTEES. Each standing Committee, except the
Executive Committee, shall have not fewer than three Trustees appointed by the Chair of the
Board. The President shall be a member of each Committee, ex officio, non-voting. The Chair
shall be a member of each committee, ex officio, voting. Committee members may include
individuals who are not trustees so long as the majority membership of the committee is
comprised of trustees. The Chair shall have the authority to appoint non-trustee members
advisory, non-voting to committees to serve until the next annual meeting. Members may be
appointed to Committees, on a temporary basis, by the Chair, as may be required.
SECTION 4: COMMITTEE MEETINGS. Committee meetings may be held at any time and
place when called by the Chair of the Committee, the Chair of the Board of Trustees, the
President of the University, or a majority of the members of the committee. The President of the
University chooses a University Liaison for each Committee. A University Liaison is the Area
Head or the individual with the greatest responsibility in said area.
Notice of each regular committee meeting shall be sent to each Trustee at least seven days prior
to the date fixed for said meeting, which notice shall state the time and place. Notice for a
special committee meeting shall be sent to each Trustee as early as possible in advance of the
meeting, also stating the time and place as well as the purpose(s) for which it has been called.
The Chair of the Board of Trustees or the President of the University may call a meeting of the
Executive Committee by declaring that an emergency condition exists. An emergency condition
shall be defined as a sudden set of circumstances arising which require the need for immediate
action. The Chair of the Board of Trustees or the President of the University shall fix the time
and place of such emergency meeting. The Secretary of the Board of Trustees shall send a
written or electronic notice of the time and place of the Executive Committee Emergency
Meeting to each member.
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The members present at any meeting of a standing committee shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business, provided that in the case of the Executive Committee, a majority of the
members shall constitute a quorum.

SECTION 5: AGENDA OF COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD. A written or electronic
agenda of matters to be considered at each meeting of a committee of the Board of Trustees shall
be sent to each committee member as early as possible in advance of the meeting. Items to be
included on committee agendas shall be submitted in writing or electronically to the President by
the Committee Liaison or Chair of the Committee.

SECTION 6: THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE. The Executive Committee shall be
composed of the Chair and Vice Chair of the Board of Trustees, the President of the University,
and three additional Board members elected to this committee by the Trustees at the annual
meeting. This Committee shall have the following powers and duties:
(a) To act upon matters for the Board of Trustees, when immediate action is necessary.
(b) To consider and act upon proposals by the President for action which the Board may have
generally or specifically authorized the President to take with the concurrence of the
Executive Committee.
(c) To review and recommend a prospective list of potential speakers and honorary degree
recipients being considered for baccalaureate and graduate commencements. Final
approval of all commencement speakers and honorary degree recipients shall rest with
the Board of Trustees.
(d) To conduct upon referral from the Board formal hearings as required by law for the
Board of Trustees or any Committee of the Trustees and to make recommendations to the
Board concerning any matter heard, provided that hearings required by law to be
conducted as adjudicatory proceedings shall be governed by General Laws, Chapter 30A.
(e) To review recommendations of the President and to recommend all actions required to be
taken by the Board of Trustees on personnel (excluding faculty and librarians) from
appointment to termination in accordance with collective bargaining agreements, Board
of Higher Education and Board policies.
(f) To review, update, and implement current affirmative action policies of the Board of
Trustees and the Board of Higher Education, and to insure compliance with State and
Federal Laws.
(g) To consider legislative and public relations policy interests of the Board of Trustees and
of the University and to make recommendations to the Board of Trustees with respect
thereto.
(h) To consider, propose and recommend to the Board of Trustees the adoption, amendment
or revision of the Bylaws.
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(i) To review recommendations of the President and recommend to the Board of Trustees
the naming of buildings, streets, ways, and other properties relating to the campus. Final
approval regarding the adoption of said names rests with the Board of Trustees.
(j) To recommend to the Board of Trustees for appointment four members of the Salem
State University Assistance Corporation Board of Directors and the SSUAC Board Chair.
(k) To review litigation matters involving the university.
SECTION 7: THE COMMITTEE ON ACADEMIC AFFAIRS AND STUDENT LIFE. The
Committee on Academic Affairs and Student Life shall have the following powers and duties:
To review and recommend to the Board of Trustees:
(a) Policies relating to the quality, character, and extent of academic programs, including
admissions, instruction, curriculum, degrees, accreditation, public service, and research,
in accordance with collective bargaining agreements and the Board of Higher Education's
policies.
(b) Proposals for major new programs and program changes.
(c) Actions to be taken by the Board of Trustees on the granting of emeritus status to retired
faculty.
(d) Procedures, policies, rules and regulations pertaining to student life.
(e) Plans and policies concerning health and athletic programs.
To review recommendations of the President and to recommend all actions required to be taken
by the Board of Trustees on faculty and librarians from appointment to termination in accordance
with collective bargaining agreements, Board of Higher Education and Board policies.
To conduct such inquiries as may be necessary with respect to student matters not of a judicial or
academic nature and to report their findings and recommendations to the Board.”

SECTION 8: THE COMMITTEE ON FINANCE AND FACILITIES. The Committee on
Finance and Facilities shall have the following powers and duties:
To review and recommend to the Board of Trustees:
(a) Student fees.
(b) The operating budget for the University.
(c) Policies relating to property, buildings, land acquisition, site development, and
construction.
(d) Policies and plans relating to facilities and long-range capital outlay budgets.
And
(e) To oversee the development and continuing review of a master plan for the University.
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SECTION 10: THE INSTITUTIONAL ADVANCEMENT, MARKETING AND
COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE. The Committee on Institutional Advancement,
Marketing and Communications shall have the following powers and duties:
To review and recommend to the Board of Trustees:
(a) Recommendations with regard to policies and programs related to the advancement of the
institution, including fundraising, marketing and communications and activities involving
alumni, the community and other external bodies, in order to foster understanding of, and
support for, the University and its mission.
(b) Plans, proposals and the acceptance of major gifts to the foundation on behalf of the
University. This will be inclusive of all private funds, including: special gifts,
endowments, bequests, and other means.
(c) Significant branding and positioning strategies for the institution.

SECTION 11: THE NOMINATING COMMITTEE. The Nominating Committee shall
nominate candidates for election as officers of the Board of Trustees and shall submit its
nominations in writing or electronically to the Secretary at least ten days prior to the date of the
annual meeting of the Board of Trustees.

SECTION 12: THE RISK MANAGEMENT AND AUDIT COMMITTEE. The Risk
Management and Audit Committee shall have the following powers and duties:
To review and recommend to the Board of Trustees:
(a) The selection of the independent accountants to perform the annual audit;
(b) The University’s financial statements, ensuring that the statements reflect the
University’s financial condition;
(c) The University’s internal controls, including those established for financial information
systems;
(d) Actions to address any regulatory compliance issues,
(e) The University’s pending legal cases.
(f) The University’s conflict of interest policy,
(g) The guidelines and policies that govern the processes by which the University assesses
and manages its exposure to risk,
(h) The University’s major financial and other risk exposures and actions to monitor and
control such exposures.

9

10/10/12, Attachment C

Adopted by the Salem State University Board of Trustees, 10/10/12

ARTICLE IV: MISCELLANEOUS.
SECTION 1: THE SEAL OF THE UNIVERSITY. The Common Seal of the University and
of the Board of Trustees shall consist of a flat faced circular die with the words Salem State
University, Salem, Massachusetts, Progredi, the date 1854, and a symbol of a clipper ship
engraved thereon.

SECTION 2: AMENDMENT, REVISION OR REPEAL OF THE BYLAWS. These Bylaws
may be amended, revised or repealed by vote of a majority of the entire number of Trustees at
any meeting of the Board of Trustees; provided, however, that the text of any amendment,
revision or repeal as originally proposed shall be sent to the Trustees at least thirty days before
the meeting.
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APPENDIX 1: LIST OF REFERENCES.
Conflict of Interest and Annual Disclosure
All members of the Board are state employees within the meaning of the state’s ethics statute
(chapter 268A of the General Laws). Violations of the statute may give rise to both civil and
criminal penalties. Each member of the Board is therefore expected to be familiar with the
requirements of the ethics statute and to comply with them.
All Trustees are advised to disclose to the Board any possible conflict of interest at the earliest
practical time and to take such other action in that regard as the law may require. Further, each
Trustee is advised to absent her/his self or herself from discussions of and to abstain from voting
on any matters under consideration by the Board of Trustees or its committees if to do otherwise
would constitute a conflict of interest. The minutes of such meeting shall, as appropriate, reflect
that a disclosure was made and that the Trustee having a conflict or possible conflict abstained
from voting.

Indemnification
Trustees of State Universities are indemnified under Massachusetts General Laws Ch. 15A: “The
Commonwealth shall indemnify a trustee of a community college or state university against loss
by reason of the liability to pay damages to a party for any claim arising out of any official
judgment…”

Pertinent Legislation
1. MA General Laws, Chapter 15A
2. MA General Laws, Chapter 28 of the Acts of 2009

APPENDIX 2: DEFINITION OF NOTICE.
Notice shall be defined as being either written or electronic and shall clearly state the date, place
and time of the meeting(s).
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Salem State University Assistance Corporation
CEO: Christine Sullivan
COO: Laura Swanson
Overview
The Salem State University Assistance Corporation (SSUAC), a non-profit organization
established by an act of the legislature, also in 1996. Its purpose is the “provide a vehicle with
the necessary flexibility to prudently pursue such opportunities for the benefit of Salem State
College, its present and future students and the commonwealth”. SSUAC purchased the GTE
Sylvania property located on Loring Avenue known today as the Central Campus. In 2010,
SSUAC purchased the Weir property located between Loring Avenue and Canal Street.
SSUAC has two major components: The Enterprise Center and a business incubator/office
space. The Enterprise Center offers programs, networking opportunities, and individualized
training for all members of the business community. Sole proprietors, small businesses,
entrepreneurs, start-ups and non-profits all avail themselves of the programming and in 2011
over 5,000 individuals from nearly 150 communities participated in the program. Most are two –
four hours programs and the vast majority is at no cost to the participant. The Enterprise Center
hosts the North Shore Business Plan competition annually.
First-class office space as well as areas for light manufacturing is available in the SSUAC 53,000
SF facility. Both come with free parking, use of conference and training rooms on a first
come/first served basis, and a shared kitchen and dining area. The Enterprise Center offers a
welcoming environment for tenants and clients alike.
Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is comprised of thirteen directors. Four members are appointed by the
Salem State University Board of Trustees; three members are gubernatorial appointments; one
member is appointed by the president of Salem State University and five are member by virtue of
their positions (president of the university; mayor of the city of Salem; representative of the
Salem Chamber of Commerce; representative of the Salem Partnership; and the city of Salem
planner). The Salem State University Board of Trustees selects the chair of the Board of
Directors.
Salem State University Board of Trustees appointees:
Joseph Correnti (Chair)
Serafini, Darling and Correnti, Attorneys at Law
Tom Dusenberry
CEO, Dusenberry Entertainment
Gordon Hall, III
The Hall Company, Inc.
Vacancy
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Gubernatorial appointees
Lee Dellicker
President, Windover Construction
Carl Swanson
Swanson Energy Group Inc.
Vacancy
Presidential appointee
David Perini
Principal, David Perini Enterprises
Appointments by position
Hon. Kim Driscoll
Mayor, City of Salem
Lynn Duncan
City Planner, Salem
Dr. Patricia Maguire Meservey
President, Salem State University
Rinus Oosthoek
Salem Chamber of Commerce
Patrick DeIulis
The Salem Partnership

10/10/12, Attachment E

Association of Governing Boards of
Universities and Colleges
National Conference on Trusteeship
• April 3 – 6, 2011
• Los Angeles, CA
• Selected session notes prepared by: Pamela C. Scott, Trustee,
Salem State University

Opening Plenary Session - Sunday, April 3
Foreign Policy: An American Perspective
Speaker: James Fallows, The Atlantic
•
•

Addressed outlook for higher ed in the international context
Remarks centered on eight themes:
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

•
•
•

Relative position of US in the world
Rise of other nations
Challenge to resolve economic imbalances between countries
Institutions of economic governance
Environmental and energy constraints
Social effects of economic growth and technology changes
Religious tensions across the world
Nuclear issues

These constant challenges will make governance in higher ed harder
Current issues – Japan disaster, Arab revolutions, Libya intervention
Role of higher ed will matter more in the next 20 years to allow more
opportunity to be created
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Plenary Session – Monday, April 4
Responding to Today’s Challenges: Is Governance Up To the Task?
Panel Moderated by: Ray Suarez, The News Hour, PBS
•
•

Competition makes you reevaluate the role of universities in their communities
– can be the catalyst for changing surrounding environments
What are the choices as trustees as systematic change is underway?
–
–
–

•

What is really important?
–
–
–

•

–

Interpret societal questions; need to believe that higher ed is essential
Should board composition model be revisited – public appointments dominate but less
government funding
Boards need philanthropic support, expertise, geographic diversity, forward looking
view

Relationship with states
–

•

Provide access to education, revisit curriculums, how to deliver instruction
Restructure resources, revisit costs
Push State and Federal government for resources/investment

Role of Boards
–
–

•

Can’t cut expenses to survive
Endowments are hurting
Can’t rely on tomorrow to be better

Ask the question to legislators: What do you want higher ed institutions to contribute
to the state?

Looking forward –Changing demographics, declining number of students

Women in the Boardroom and in the President’s Office:
What difference does it make?
Panel Moderated by: Susan Whealler Johnston, EVP, AGB, Trustee,
Rollins College
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

Women are:57% Undergrad enrollment, 60% Graduate enrollment, 42% Full Time Faculty
Women are: 23% College Presidents, 27% Public, 19% Private, 29% Community Colleges
Women are: 30% of Private Boards, 28% Public Boards, 18% Chairs
Corporate comparison: Women CEO – Fortune 500 & Fortune 1000 – 2.2%
Corporate Boards – 15.7%
Positive impacts of women leadership – Better decision making and governance; reflect
community and student body
Why we are not there as Presidents
– Fewer women aspire to the role, job structure not comfortable, boards dominated by
males, done have sponsors, search process must be intentional to include women
candidates
Men do better in hierarchy, women better in flat organizations – influences hiring
Male faculty are sensitive to increase in women leadership – changes status quo
Put women in leadership on the board – show their skills
Succession planning not embraced in higher ed – should rethink looking internally, many
Provosts move to become President elsewhere
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Public Policy Plenary Session - Monday, April 4
Federal Education Policy
Panel Moderated by: Hon. Jim Geringer, Vice Chair, AGB, Trustee,
Western Governors University
•

New regulations coming
–
–

Employment, Definition of academic credit
Pell Grant growth – cut award amount, alter eligibility

–

Private sector – for-profit colleges lawsuit

•

•

•
•
•
•
•

Life saver for public education, shift to more Fed support as State support declines

Asst. Sec’y Ochoa – Higher ed has not advocated and educated policymakers
effectively on their situation and needs for support. He suggests that the six
organizations convene to have national education policy discussion, how to
meet Pres. Obama’s goal of increasing college grads by 2020
Migration to more direct student lending – Fed Student Aid program
Higher ed needs to address productivity – more efficient delivery of instruction,
adopt new technologies
Benefits of President’s 2020 goal – discussion of higher ed has expanded on
access, retention and completion
Fed expects that support is well spent and wants to measure outcomes, i. e
graduation rates – what else can be used?
What can board do to develop solutions versus be subject to Fed mandates?

Engaging the Board on Academic Quality and Oversight
Panel Moderated by: Thomas C. Longin, Senior Fellow, AGB
•
•
•

Boards have not spent the time or resources to effectively oversee education
quality
Trustees monitor policy and procedures – how data is collected; results shared
Need to understand academic programs
–
–
–

•
•

Include non-academic areas – whole student experience
Getting to know what accreditation means
–
–

•
•

Where are our majors and the commitment to them
Graduate studies
Linkage to larger strategies

Understand the standards
Where do we stand

Trustees should have hard data that demonstrates academic goals are being
achieved – not rely only on antidotal evidence
Does the board have some expertise in this area? What is the commitment to
board education? Capacity to understand outcomes and how they work?
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AGB Conference on
Trusteeship, April 2012
• Topics
– Innovative University
– Dashboards & Metrics
– Risk Management
– Leadership
– Strategic Planning
– Degree Completion

Changing Landscape
•
•
•
•

Changing work place
Changing demographics
Changing policies
Changing economy
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Theory of Disruption Christensen
• New innovation: filling the void in
existing markets
• Disruption: for-profit, on-line education
Goal: success through
• Success: high quality, affordable,
accessible higher education

Dashboard and Metrics
•
•
•
•
•
•

Student Data
Academic Data
Financial Data
Fundraising Data
Staff and Faculty Data
Institution Position/Competiveness
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Risk Management
Categories of Risk
• Strategic -- Changes in demographics, competitors,
entrepreneurial programming
• Operational -- Alcohol abuse, sexual molestation,
fire, human resources, etc.
• Compliance – Federal, state, other regulatory
• Governance -- Policies and practices in governance
• Reputational -- Media and impact view of institution

Fisher vs. Texas – US
Supreme Court
• Issue:
– Fisher denied admission, Fall 2009
– Discrimination based on consideration given to Black &
Hispanic candidates

• Prior case: 2003,Grutter v. Bollinger, University of
Michigan Law School
• What is different now? Composition of Court
• What is at stake? Could strike down all raceconscious admission policies at the nation’s colleges
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REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Reports from the following committees:
‐ Audit: June 6; August 10; and October 9, 2012
‐ Finance & Facilities: September 19, 2012
‐ Presidential Review: August 21; September 19, and
October 3, 2012
‐ Executive: August 21, 2012

Minutes from the Meeting of
October 10, 2012
Salem State University
Board of Trustees

SUBJECT: Audit Committee Meeting Report for June 6, 2012
The Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees met on Wednesday, June 6, 2012, in conference
room 204, Marsh Hall, Central Campus of Salem State University.
Present for the Committee were Trustees Scott (vice chair) and Gates, Board Chair Segal and
President Meservey (ex-officio); vice president for finance & facilities Soll (committee liaison), and
staff assistant Beaulieu, finance & facilities. Also present and participating in the meeting: Trustee
Bertrand and associate vice president for finance Donovan.
Trustee Scott called the meeting to order at 4:35 pm.
A133 Single Audit Procedures for FY2011-12
Vice President Soll informed the committee about changes in procedures regarding the federally
mandated A133 single audit. The state comptroller notified public higher education institutions in
early April regarding new procedures for auditing federal programs. In the past the state did a
review of these programs through a sampling of three or four institutions. A high error rate brought
up concerns about the sampling approach and questions about whether it was resulting in sufficient
improvement. Mr. Soll said he believes Salem State is in compliance, but the university has not
been part of the sampling in a number of years.
The state auditor, comptroller and secretary of administration and finance discussed this issue and
decided to stop the past practice of auditing by sampling institutions. The state auditor hired
outside auditors to conduct the A133 single audits in the past but does not have the resources to do
all of the institutions. The decision by the state calls for all institutions to take over responsibility
for conducting the A133 audit. O’Connor & Drew, auditing firm for the university’s financial
statements, has a majority of the public institutions as clients and is familiar with the A133 single
audit process, which they have performed for private institutions. They know Salem State’s
accounting procedures and are familiar with its financial statements. In consideration of these
factors and the short time available to engage an auditor for the A133 audit, the university asked
O’Connor & Drew to submit a proposal to do this additional audit. O’Connor and Drew quoted a
range of $12,000 to $16,000 to conduct the A133 audit, which is in line with the university’s
anticipated cost of about $15,000. The university has proceeded to contract with O’Connor &
Drew. Last year the Massachusetts Office of State Financial Aid (MOSFA) audit was completed by
O’Connor and Drew. That audit is done every third year and is distinct from the A133 audit of
federal programs.
Trustee Scott asked the name of the firm that did the sampling for the A133 single audit. Vice
President Soll responded KPMG. Vice President Soll went on to comment that in the past when
findings were identified in the sampling for the A133 single audit, the findings were assumed to
apply to all institutions and not just those sampled. Therefore, doing an audit just for Salem State
will determine if any of the earlier findings actually apply to the university. Trustee Scott inquired
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about absorbing the cost. Vice President Soll noted that the cost will be built into the FY2013
budget. The results of the A133 single audit will be reported to the Audit Committee and the
Board of Trustees.
FY2011-12 Audit Schedule
Vice President Soll distributed a tentative FY2012 year-end audit schedule (Exhibit 1). O’Connor
& Drew has confirmed the schedule meets their needs, but Vice President Soll wanted to give the
committee a chance to review. The A133 single audit is incorporated into this schedule. The
process is very much the same as last year. There are four critical dates: 1) the week of August 6,
2012, field work begins, and an entrance interview with the audit committee and president will be
scheduled; 2) the week of September 10, 2012, after the field work concludes, is an optional
opportunity for the auditors to meet with the committee and president to apprise them of any
concerns found during the field work; 3) October 9, 2012, is slated for the exit interview with the
committee and president to present the report draft; and 4) October 10, 2012, the Board of
Trustees meets to accept the audit reports.
The state closes its books on FY2012 on August 31, and Foundation and Assistance Corporation
financial statements need to be completed prior to beginning the university’s financial statements so
they can be incorporated as component units. Therefore, it is not possible to start preparation of
the university financial statements earlier.
Once audit committee members are appointed, Board Secretary Fleischman and Ms. Beaulieu will
coordinate the scheduling of the meetings mentioned above. Trustee Segal inquired about the
auditing firm. Vice President Soll reminded the committee that this is the second year of a new
three-year contract with O’Connor & Drew resulting from a system-wide bid last year. O’Connor
& Drew has a large practice with people in the firm who are well versed in the higher education
area. They have switched out personnel periodically on the team assigned to the university audit to
provide for a fresh look at the university’s books. Trustee Gates asked how long the board will have
the materials to review prior to its meeting. Vice President Soll answered that the board will get an
electronic copy by the weekend prior to the audit committee and full board meetings. Trustee
Gates suggested that the new members of the audit committee receive a copy of last year’s audit to
review to become familiar with the report.
There being no further business to come before the committee, Trustee Gates moved and Trustee
Scott seconded a motion to adjourn.
MOTION: To adjourn the meeting.
On a voice vote, the motion passed unanimously.
The meeting adjourned at 4:56 pm.
Prepared by: Ms. Beaulieu, staff assistant, finance and facilities.
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Exhibit 1
Financial Services

FY2012 Year End Audit Schedule (Tentative)
Week of June 11
Week of June 25

Internal Control Systems Testing - Field Work
Internal Control Systems Testing - Field Work (if necessary)

July 6

SSU receives Letter of Audit Field Work Scope and Information Requests
from OCD

August 6

Start of Audit Field Work – Financial Statements

Week of August 6

Entrance Interview with President and Board of Trustees Audit Committee
(contingent on President and Committee availability)

August 31

Commonwealth Period 13 Ends

September 7

End of Audit Field Work

Week of September 10 Optional Interim Review with President and Board of Trustees Audit
Committee (contingent on President and Committee availability)
September 10

Copy of Foundation Financials to SSU and OCD (TBD or as available)

September 10

Copy of Asst. Corp. Financials to SSU and OCD (TBD or as available)

September 12

Begin Financial Statements

September 19

Financial Statements (first draft)

September 24

Begin MD&A

September 28

Finish MD&A

October 1

Authorization from OCD to close FY12 and carry-over balances

October 3

Finalize Financial Statements

October 9

Exit Interview with President and Board of Trustees Audit Committee
(contingent on President and Committee availability)

October 10

Board of Trustees Meeting (to approve Financials)

October 15

O’Connor & Drew Submits Financial Statements to State Comptroller

5/29/2012
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SUBJECT: Audit Committee Meeting Report for August 10, 2012
The Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees met on Friday, August 10, 2012, in conference room 204,
Marsh Hall, Central Campus of Salem State University.
Present for the Committee were Trustees Ansara (chair), Scott (ex-officio), Segal (vice chair) and Davis;
President Meservey (ex-officio); vice president for finance and facilities Soll (committee liaison), and
administrative assistant Squires. Also present and participating in the meeting: Trustee Bertrand, executive
vice president Cahill, Mr. Cohen, Mr. DiIulis and Mr. McGuinness.
Trustee Ansara called the meeting to order at 8:30 am.
Trustee Scott asked the Audit Committee and other attendees to introduce themselves. Vice President Soll
turned the meeting over to David DiIulis, CPA, engagement partner of O’Connor & Drew; Steven Cohen,
CPA, engagement partner of O’Connor & Drew and Brendan McGuinness, CPA, engagement manager of
O’Connor & Drew. Mr. Cohen told the committee that Michelle Monroe, audit senior will be in charge of
the audit. A booklet (Attachment A) was distributed to the trustees and others attending the meeting. Mr.
DiIulis thanked the trustees for continuing the relationship with the firm and the opportunity to work with
the university. In addition to the financial statements audit, an A-133 audit (federal funds audit) will be
performed.
Mr. Cohen explained to the committee the timing of the audit (Att. A, page three). Planning begins in early
to mid-May; interim audit occurs June 11 to June 30; year-end is August 6 to September 7, with audit
completion mid/late September to early October. The audit approach (page four) covers testing internal
controls; tracing source documents, etc. Vice President Soll added that the critical date is August 31 when
the Commonwealth closes its books for the fiscal year. The university cannot begin to assemble the financial
statements until after this date. It takes about one week to ten days to prepare the financial statements. He
noted that a master calendar had been shared at the June board meeting. September 12 is being held for an
interim meeting in case the auditors need to alert the committee of anything that may need to be reported.
The auditors will keep the committee posted. Every Thursday during the course of the audit the auditors
meet with university staff to discuss any issues that may require additional data etc. The meetings are used
as a vehicle to understand various issues.
Mr. Cohen took the committee through the process for the A-133 audit (page 5). This audit is required if an
organization, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, spends more than $500,000 per year in Federal funds.
Fiscal year 2012 is the first year for this audit for Salem State. Previously a few universities and community
colleges were selected by the State as part of a statewide A-133 audit. Mr. Cohen and Mr. DiIulis
explained that the State changed this process due to lack of man-power on their end and repeated findings
that were not being addressed as quickly as necessary. KPMG, the overseer of the state-wide audit,
requested more samples be reviewed. The State did not want to perform the audit this way, and it was
placed in the hands of the audit firms who perform the annual financial audits for each institution.
Vice President Soll explained that Salem State University was not one of the sample schools in past years.
Trustee Ansara asked what the nature of findings might be. Vice President Soll said an example might be
Federal financial aid distribution to a student(s) who no longer attends classes without officially
withdrawing (i.e: Walkaways). Financial aid funds must be returned to the Federal government. Mr. DiIulis
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said an advantage to the A-133 audit is that the Financial Aid audit performed by the State auditors usually
took a long time because the report is not due until March. The A-133 audit will be performed
simultaneous with the audit of the financial statements. Trustee Scott asked if there is a deadline for the A133 audit. Mr. DiIulis said that he is not sure if the A-133 audit report will be issued with the audit of
financial statements; however that is O’Connor & Drew’s goal. Trustee Scott said that it does make sense
that each school performs this process. Mr. Cohen said it is estimated that $54.7 million of Federal funds
were spent by the university of which $53.3 million were for student financial aid (Stafford loans, Pell
grants, work study, etc.) and $750,000 for TRIO grants (low income and disadvantaged students). Mr.
Cohen went on to review the components of the A-133 audit report (page 6).
Mr. Cohen and Mr. DiIulis said that because it has not been audited for two years, Salem State University,
along with the other state schools, will be considered a “high risk” auditee for the next two years. All state
institutions are considered “high risk” for this reason. Mr. Cohen said that the university is required to
disclose findings for prior years. President Meservey asked if a footnote could be added to the audit report
as to why the university has not been audited for two years. Mr. Cohen replied that the audit needs to be
unqualified.
President Meservey stated that the Salem State University Assistance Corporation’s financial statements are
audited by O’Connor & Drew and the Salem State University Foundation has its books audited by Feely &
Driscoll. Information from both these audits is included in the university’s financial statements. Trustee
Ansara asked if the committee will review the audit before the full Board of Trustees meeting. The audit,
in draft form, will be presented to the Audit Committee for discussion and recommendation to the full
Board of Trustees on October 9. The full Board of Trustees is scheduled to meet on October 10 to accept
the audit. Trustee Ansara asked if a Management Letter would be issued. Mr. Cohen responded that the
letter that we will receive is now called a Business Advisory Letter.
Trustee Segal asked what the cost of the audit is. Vice President Soll responded that the audit of financial
statements is $62,000 and the cost of the A-133 audit is $16,000. Trustee Segal then asked if there is a
comparison of payroll from Fiscal Year 2011 to Fiscal Year 2012. President Meservey responded that this is
not an audit issue; however the information can be provided through the university’s budget process. Mr.
DiIulis said that total salary information is provided in the financial statements. Trustee Segal would like to
review the university’s administrative costs.
Results of the interim audit (page nine) – testing of payroll, student revenues, cash receipts and
disbursement internal controls appears reasonable and testing was performed in regards to the
Massachusetts financial aid program. Testing for the A-133 audit is in process also. Mr. Cohen said there
are no new GASB rules that will impact the financial statements for fiscal year 2012.
Mr. Cohen mentioned that a current year topic is the Clery Act, which is a Federal act for all institutions
that receive Federal financial aid. He mentioned a recent article published on Boston.com. He said there is
a handbook for the Clery Act, which is a very complicated law. He also said the United States government
is very serious about the law. Mr. Cohen said that the total number of fines during the first 18 years of the
act were six. The total number of fines in the last three years is six. He said that the auditors will test Clery
Act requirements, and O’Conner & Drew can assist Salem State University in Clery Act compliance. Mr.
Cohen believes that fiscal year 2013 audit will require compliance. The university could receive an
additional letter if findings occur.
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President Meservey asked why this information would be imbedded in the university’s audit if it is not
required. She believes that Salem State is doing a good job staying compliant. Mr. DiIulis said this is a hot
issue for institutions and suggested that the university perform a self-assessment. O’Connor & Drew gave a
presentation at the Massachusetts State University Chief Financial Officers meeting in June to bring this
topic to the forefront. He said that if an institution is non-compliant, fines could be substantial and the
publicity could be costly. The university’s compliance officer is Chief Labonte. Vice President Soll gave
copies of the presentation to the chief and executive vice president Cahill. Trustee Scott said that this topic
should be subject to further discussion. Trustee Davis asked about the interaction of Salem State police and
the City of Salem police. Executive Vice President Cahill explained that the university is required to contact
Salem police if an incident occurs on the “opposite” sidewalk from campus. The university is required to
report its crime statistics to the city police. President Meservey relayed information about incidents that
happened on Raymond Road, which is in the middle of the university’s campuses.
The floor was opened for questions. Trustee Segal asked about additional construction expenses; are the
expenses tracked and/or broken down in the audit. Mr. Cohen and Mr. Donovan both responded that these
expenses are capitalized. Trustee Segal then asked about operational expenses. Vice president Soll
responded that operational expenses are not tracked as part of the audit. Trustee Segal also asked about the
construction of the library, the fitness center and the residence halls. Vice president Soll said that the
residence halls are tracked separately.
Trustee Ansara moved and Trustee Segal seconded a motion to enter into executive session in accordance
with General Laws, Chapter 30A for the purpose of discussing any potential fraud with the auditors. A roll
call vote was taken for the purpose of going into executive session:
Roll Call:
Ansara - yes
Scott - yes
Davis - yes
Segal - yes
Prepared by: Ms. Squires, administrative assistant II, financial services
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SUBJECT: Audit Committee Meeting Report for October 9, 2012
The Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees met on Tuesday, October 9, 2012, in training room
106, Enterprise Center, Central Campus of Salem State University.
Present for the Committee were Trustees Ansara (chair), Segal (vice chair), Davis, Scott (exofficio); President Meservey, Executive Vice President Cahill, Vice President for Finance &
Facilities and committee liaison Soll; and Ms. Beaulieu, staff assistant, finance and facilities. Also
present and participating in the meeting: Associate Vice President for Finance Donovan; David
DiIulis and Steven Cohen from O’Connor & Drew.
Trustee Segal called the meeting to order at 4:04 pm.
Audit of FY2011-12 Financial Statements
Vice President Soll stated that the two agenda items for discussion were review of Salem State
University’s audited FY2012 financial statements for the period ending June 30, 2012 (Exhibit A)
and audit of FY2012 federal programs (A-133) for the period ending June 30, 2012 (Exhibit B). He
turned the presentation over to O’Connor & Drew.
Mr. DiIulis, of O’Connor & Drew, thanked the trustees for the opportunity to perform these
audits. He noted the audited financial statements are due to the State Comptroller on October 15,
2012.
Required Communications
A PowerPoint presentation was distributed (Attachment 1) by O’Connor & Drew. Mr. Cohen
discussed the required communications items that need to be conveyed to the trustees. The first
item covers the auditor’s responsibilities under GAAS and GAS (page two). O’Connor & Drew
performed the audit to determine with reasonable – not absolute – assurance that the basic financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether caused be error or fraud. An unqualified
opinion on the university’s financial statements was given; no material weaknesses/deficiencies
were noted within the Report on Internal Control over financial reporting and on compliance. The
second item relates to significant accounting policies and transactions (page three). There were no
changes in significant accounting policies. Significant transactions included: American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act (ARRA) funds; issuance of Massachusetts State College Building+ Authority
(MSCBA) bonds for construction of the new fitness and recreation center; and Division of Capital
Asset Management (DCAM) funds for construction of the new Library/Learning Commons. There
were no audit adjustments or uncorrected misstatements. The third item relates to management’s
judgments and accounting estimates (page four). Other communications (page four) noted no
disagreements with management; consultation with other accountants/auditors – consulted with
Salem State University Foundation’s auditor; no major issues were discussed with management
prior to retention; no difficulties were encountered in performing the audit; and significant written
communications between the auditor and management included the engagement letter and
representation letter. Also the required communications included statements of independence and
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management advisory services/tax services/other services (page five). O’Connor & Drew is
independent of the university. No management advisory services were performed by O’Connor &
Drew during 2012. The firm did perform a Single Audit under the guidelines of OMB Circular A133 for federal awards.
Financial Statement Fraud Risks (page six)
No pervasive financial statement fraud risks were identified. Trustee Segal asked the auditors about
potential fraud. Mr. DiIulis responded that statistical and random samples of 40 transactions were
performed. If an anomaly were discovered, the testing threshold would be increased. Extensive
testing was done for the Single Audit. Mr. Cohen commented that in reviewing internal controls
nothing came to their attention; however, management and trustees can request further review.
Single Audit under the Guidelines of OMB Circular A-133 (pages eight and nine)
It was noted that Salem will be the first among its sister institutions to have its A-133 completed.
A-133 audits were previously done by the State Auditor through a contract with KPMG. Only a
few institutions were chosen in the past. Each institution is now required to engage an independent
auditor to perform this audit. It is expected that every institution will have a couple of findings,
considering single audits have not been done in several years. Salem is considered a high risk
auditee because federal funds have not been audited in the prior two years (OMB requirement).
Thresholds distinguish between Type A and Type B programs. Type A, or major, programs that are
above $300,000 need to be tested. Additional programs were tested since federal guidelines
required auditors to exclude large loan programs (Student Financial Aid cluster) in determining the
major programs threshold. The major programs tested were Student Financial Aid Cluster; TRIO
Cluster (Student Support Services and Upward Bound); State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (ARRA);
and Small Business Development Center.
Two findings resulted. The first is a Massachusetts public college/university issue dealing with the
work-study payroll. The state payroll system workweek is Sunday through Saturday. Timesheets
are submitted Thursday. Signed timesheets are due in the payroll office by Friday morning.
Students scheduled to work on Friday and/or Saturday include their time for these days on their
timesheets in advance based on their scheduled work times. The timesheets have to be entered into
the system no later than Monday unless it is a holiday. Corrections would have to be made if the
student did not work due to sickness or other unforeseen reason. Management has a mitigating
response. Policies and procedures will be reviewed.
Vice President Soll noted that the State has implemented an on-line, self-service attendance
reporting system. Currently administrators and non-unit professional staff are using this procedure.
It is highly probable that this procedure will be in place by July 1 for college work study students.
The second finding dealt with procedures for student separation from the university (leave of
absence documentation). The federal government requires a written request that is signed by the
student when applying for a leave of absence. President Meservey handed out a memorandum
from Vice President for Enrollment Management and Student Life James outlining his response to
this finding and corrective action taken (Exhibit B-2). In addition in response to a great deal of press
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over the last few weeks regarding financial aid compliance issues at Roxbury Community College,
Vice President James informed the trustees that Salem is in full compliance with the regulations
regarding students taking remedial coursework. Roxbury Community College was fined for
financial aid compliance issues related to this issue.
Mr. Cohen took the trustees through the audited financial statements and management’s discussion
and analysis for the period ending June 30, 2012 (Exhibit A). After the table of contents is the
independent auditor’s report (pages one and two), which provides Salem an unqualified opinion. In
addition reference was made to a report on internal control over financial reporting and on
compliance and other matters based on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards as described on pages 53–54. The management’s discussion and
analysis for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 (pages 3–13), which is unaudited, appeared
very comprehensive. Mr. Cohen stated that it is one of the best he has read. Trustee Segal asked
why the viability ratio decreased (page five). Vice President Soll responded that this is due to the
debt for the bond issued for the new fitness and recreation center. Trustee Segal further inquired
about how the fees collected would affect the ratio. Vice President Soll noted that the numerator is
impacted by the fees but the denominator will go down over time as the debt is reduced, so the
ratio should improve over time.
Trustee Segal questioned the $201,000 under Net Operating Revenues (page six) and the negative
net operating revenues ratio. Both Vice President Soll and Associate Vice President Donovan
explained that the actual cash netted the $201,000 while non-cash factors, such as the decline in the
market portfolio and $2.8M in additional amortization and depreciation impacted the ratio
negatively. Mr. DiIulis mentioned that Salem may want to show a composite ratio and will work
with Associate Vice President Donovan in calculating this for the future.
The statement of net assets (page 14) shows that 60% of the balance sheet is the $95.5 million in
capital assets. Bonds payable increased by $15 million related to the debt for the fitness and
recreation center. The Massachusetts State College Building Authority (MSCBA) deposit in cash
assets of $13 million is the amount of the bond funds not spent as of June 30, 2012. Statements of
revenue and expenses (page 15) showed an increase in capital grants. The state maintenance
appropriation was basically flat. The statement of cash flows (page 16) reflected a total increase of
$13.3 million, mostly comprised of the deposit held by MSCBA. Combined net assets (page 17)
and combining statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets (page 18) refer to the
Salem State University Foundation and the Salem State University Assistance Corporation assets.
Trustee Segal commented that the increase in the Foundation’s assets is probably attributable to the
current campaign. Mr. Cohen noted that O’Connor & Drew does not perform the audit of the
Foundation. It was noted that only the income derived from net assets that are restricted and
nonexpendable can be used and not the principal. Vice President Soll added that expendable
restricted funds are based on the donor’s restrictions on spending.
Note 1 to the financial statements for June 30, 2012 and 2011(pages 19 – 26) lists a summary of
significant accounting policies. These are boiler plate disclosures.
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Trustee Segal inquired about private papers donated, and whether, if they are historical, a value is
assigned. President Meservey commented that there is no value given to papers that have been
received to date. She did mention that a review is currently underway of the archives. Trustee
Segal wondered if the received gifts of papers were valued for a tax donation. Mr. Cohen
recommended that historical records should not be capitalized as it is very difficult to maintain an
accurate estimate of their value. Trustee Segal was interested in what the university has for
historical records. President Meservey noted that the archives are not very organized, which is the
reason for the review. Trustee Segal expressed concern. Mr. Cohen gave, as an example of
historical records, the lock of Paul Revere’s hair the Boston Public Library has. Salem State has
nothing of equivalent historic value.
Mr. Cohen continued to walk through the notes to the financial statements beginning with note 2
on cash and equivalents. At June 30, 2012, the carrying amount of the university’s deposits was $43
million not held by the state. Of this amount $18.3 million is in the Massachusetts Municipal
Depository Trust (MMDT). As of June 30, 2012, the university had deposits of approximately $5.5
million held in money market accounts and insured up to $5.75 million. University investments
(note 4, pages 27-28) are listed by type. Foundation’s holdings are listed by category (note 4, page
29). University accounts receivable (note 5, page 30) are listed by category. Pledge receivables
(note 6, pages 30-31) are listed by year, and loans receivable and payables (note 7, pages 31-32) are
described by type. Trustee Segal inquired about how the pledged receivables are determined. Mr.
DiIulis and Mr. Cohen responded that they receive confirmations on large contracts and receipts.
Note 8 (pages 33-34), capital assets, showed an increase of $23.5 million from 2011 to 2012 of
which $20.5 million is related to the construction of the library/learning commons. The auditors
noted this was impressive. Other non-current assets (note 8, pages 35-36) noted an increase of debt
issue costs related to the financing of the new fitness and recreation center. Long term liabilities
(note 10, pages 38-39), lists descriptions of bonds by project. Maturity on bond payments is listed
on page 40. Component entities (Assistance Corporation) long term liabilities are listed on pages
40–41, such as capital debt, annual debt service and bond liability. Note 11, rental income (page
42), refers to the Assistance Corporation. A substantial part of the rental income is derived from
the university. Note 14, cash flow information (page 44), lists the components of cash of the
university. Note 15, commitments and contingencies (pages 44-45), prompted Trustee Segal to
inquire about exposure. Mr. Cohen noted that there is a review of known legal contingencies.
Trustee Ansara further inquired about claims. Mr. Cohen responded that potential claims can vary
from $50,000 to $5 million and would be described but not listed. Note 17, retirement plan (pages
46-47), describes the commonwealth’s fringe benefit programs. Note 18, Massachusetts
Management Accounting and Reporting System (MMARS) on pages 47-49, lists the components of
the state appropriations allocated to the university. Note 20, MSCBA, describes the responsibility
and purpose of this entity, along with its revenue assessments for residence halls and other major
renovations and improvements for the university.
Trustee Ansara asked if an advisory letter is issued. Mr. Cohen noted that in the required
communication there were no management advisory services performed in 2012. Mr. DiIulis added
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that if a significant concern was found a management letter would be issued and that management
and the trustees would have been notified prior to this meeting.
Audit of Federal Programs (A-133)
The A-133 federal programs audit findings (Exhibit B) were reviewed.
The first finding, 2012-1 (page eight), refers to the Federal College Work Study program and the
issue relating to timesheets for students who may work on Friday or Saturday but for whom
timesheets are signed by the student and student’s supervisor and submitted prior to the last day of
the work week. The workweek is Sunday through Saturday per the State Comptroller. Timesheets
are due by 10 am on Friday in order for them to be entered into the payroll system by Monday.
This policy was instituted to meet the timeframes of the state payroll system. This finding will be
common to all the public universities and community colleges. Management will review mitigating
internal controls.
The second finding, 2012-2 (page ten), pertains to the Student Financial Assistance Cluster and
leave of absence regulations. One student’s leave of absence was not properly documented. The
federal government requires a student’s leave of absence to be evaluated after the student provides
the university with a properly documented request that is signed and dated. The university has an
appropriate policy in place, but the policy was not followed in this case. The university
acknowledges the need for clear procedures, and effective immediately university staff will require
all such requests to be in writing as prescribed by federal regulations.
Mr. Cohen explained the distinction between a material weakness and significant deficiency. For
finding 2012-2, it was noted that there was no material weakness identified, however there was a
significant deficiency that was not considered a material weakness. “Significant deficiency” is an
accounting term used for a concern that does not necessarily rise to the level of materiality. Page
seven of the audit lists the major federal programs that meet the threshold of $300,000. Associate
Vice President Donovan wrote each of the university responses to these findings. There were no
applicable findings that needed to be addressed from last year. Both major and non-major programs
are listed on page 13. Mr. DiIulis stated that the A-133 audits are to be submitted to the federal
clearinghouse and are due March 31, 2013. Salem’s is nearly complete and will be done ahead of
schedule due to the staff’s responsiveness, according to Mr. DiIulis. (Trustee Davis left the
meeting).
Trustee Scott moved and Trustee Segal seconded the following:
MOTION:

To recommend that the Board of Trustees of Salem State University
hereby accepts the Salem State University Financial Statements and
Management Discussion and Analysis for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012 per Exhibit A.

The motion passed unanimously.
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Trustee Scott moved and Trustee Segal seconded the following:
MOTION:

To recommend that the Board of Trustees of Salem State University
hereby accepts the Salem State University A-133 audit of federal
programs spending for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, per Exhibit
B.

The motion passed unanimously.
Trustee Ansara moved and Trustee Segal seconded a motion to enter into executive session in
accordance with General Laws, Chapter 30A, for the purpose of discussing any potential fraud with
the auditors. A roll call vote was taken for the purpose of going into executive session:
Roll Call:
Ansara – yes
Segal – yes
Scott – yes
Trustee Ansara moved and Trustee Segal seconded a motion to exit executive session in accordance
with General Laws, Chapter 30A, for the purpose of discussing any potential fraud with the
auditors. A roll call vote was taken for the purpose of exiting executive session:
Roll Call:
Ansara – yes
Segal – yes
Scott – yes
President Meservey thanked Mr. DiIulis and Mr. Cohen for their report and for their
complimentary comments regarding university staff. She also appreciates their offer of assistance.
There being no further business to come before the committee, Trustee Segal moved and Trustee
Scott seconded a motion to adjourn.
MOTION: To adjourn the meeting.
On a voice vote, the motion passed unanimously.
The meeting adjourned at 5:09 pm.

Prepared by: Ms. Beaulieu, staff assistant, finance and facilities.
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Exhibit A

REQUEST FOR TRUSTEE ACTION
Date:
To:
From:
Subject:

October 3, 2012
Board of Trustees
Patricia Maguire Meservey, President
Salem State University Financial Statements and Management Discussion and
Analysis for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012
Requested Action: Approval of Resolution Accepting Financial Statements
By action of the Board of Trustees, O’Connor & Drew, certified public accountants, was engaged to
perform an audit of the university’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The
audit included review of internal controls in place at the university and testing of representative
transactions.
The Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees, meeting on October 9, 2012, will receive the audit
report and a presentation on it by the auditors. The audit report must be accepted by the Board of
Trustees so that it can be submitted to the Office of the State Comptroller by October 15, 2012.

RESOLUTION
The Board of Trustees of Salem State University hereby accepts the Salem State University Financial
Statements and Management Discussion and Analysis for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.
Committee Assigned:
Committee Action:
Date of Action:

Audit
Approved
October 9, 2012

Trustee Action:
Trustee Approval Date:
Effective Date:
Signed:

__________________________________

Title:

Secretary, Board of Trustees

Date:

__________________________________
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Exhibit B

REQUEST FOR TRUSTEE ACTION
Date:
To:
From:
Subject:

October 9, 2012
Board of Trustees
Patricia Maguire Meservey, President
Salem State University A-133 Audit of Federal Programs for Fiscal Year Ending
June 30, 2012
Requested Action: Approval of Resolution Accepting A-133 Audit Report
By action of the Board of Trustees, O’Connor & Drew, certified public accountants, was engaged to
perform an audit of the university’s federal programs spending for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.
The Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees, meeting on October 9, 2012, will receive the audit
report and a presentation on it by the auditors. The audit report must be accepted by the Board of
Trustees so that it can be submitted to the federal government and the Office of the State Comptroller.

RESOLUTION
The Board of Trustees of Salem State University hereby accepts the Salem State University A-133 audit
of federal programs spending for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.
Committee Assigned:
Committee Action:
Date of Action:

Audit
Approved
October 9, 2012

Trustee Action:
Trustee Approval Date:
Effective Date:
Signed:

__________________________________

Title:

Secretary, Board of Trustees

Date:

__________________________________
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SUBJECT: Finance & Facilities Committee Meeting Report for September 19, 2012
The Finance & Facilities Committee of the Board of Trustees met on Wednesday, September 19, 2012,
in conference room 210, Marsh Hall, Central Campus of Salem State University.
Present for the Committee: Trustees Quiroga (chair), Mattera (vice chair), Abdoo, Bertrand, Chair
Scott and President Meservey (ex-officio); others present were: Trustees Davis, Segal and Villa,
executive vice president Cahill, vice president, finance & facilities Soll (committee liaison), and staff
assistant Beaulieu, finance & facilities.
Trustee Quiroga called the meeting to order at 2:55 pm.
FY2012-13 Final General Operations Budget
Trustee Quiroga reviewed that on June 6, 2012, the Board of Trustees approved a 2012-13 pro forma
general operations budget to enable the university to operate at the start of the new fiscal year pending
completion of the state budget process. Vice President Soll distributed a revised 2012-13 final general
operations budget proposal (Attachment 1) with slight changes to the pro forma, including changes in
cost and sources, and was asked to explain these changes. In June when the board considered the budget,
the proposal was based on two assumptions. First, the FY13 level of state support was assumed to be
$34.6 million, the same as for FY2012. That assumption proved to be sound, as the final state
appropriation matched the anticipated level. Second, the pro forma budget was based on the assumption
that the state would provide funds for mandated compensation adjustments resulting from collective
bargaining agreements. The pro forma did not include mandated collective bargaining increases for
employees whose salaries are paid from state funds because there was no assurance at that time these
would be provided through the state budget. Vice President Soll was pleased to announce that funding
for a compensation reserve to the state universities was included in the final state budget approved by
the legislature and governor, and funds have been allocated to the university.
The agenda materials mailed to the finance and facilities committee on September 5 were based on an
anticipated $2.581 million allocation for mandated compensation adjustments. Since then the state
approved a final number of $2.679 million, approximately $98,000 more than anticipated. The increase
is based on refined calculations of the actual cost of implementing the new contracts. Exhibit 1A
summarizes the final fiscal year 2012-13 proposed general operating budget, with the only change from
what was mailed being the insertion of the final supplemental appropriation amount. Below both
revenue and expense totals, the budget shows a fringe benefits increase of $737,000, which results from
application of the state-mandated fringe benefit rate to the $2.679 million of supplemental salary funds.
These fringe benefits funds do not come to the university but are spent by the state on behalf of the
university. They are shown in the exhibit to recognize this as part of the state’s support of the
university.
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Trustee Mattera inquired whether the university had any discretion in making compensation
adjustments. Vice President Soll responded that implementation of the collective bargaining agreements
is not discretionary and that the supplemental funds must be used for salaries adjustments.
Trustee Quiroga made the following motion, seconded by Trustee Bertrand.
MOTION
The Finance and Facilities Committee recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the following
motion.
MOTION
The Board of Trustees of Salem State University hereby approves the Fiscal Year 2012-13 General
Operations Budget as recommended by the president and described in EXHIBIT 1-A hereto, with
revenues and expenses balanced in the amount of $103 million. The president and other officers of the
university are hereby authorized to do all things and take all actions deemed necessary to implement the
budget and protect the fiscal health of the university.
On a voice vote, the motion passed unanimously.
There being no further business to come before the committee, Trustee Scott moved and Trustee Abdoo
seconded a motion to adjourn.
MOTION: To adjourn the meeting.
On a voice vote, the motion passed unanimously.
The meeting adjourned at 3:04 pm.
Prepared by: Ms. Beaulieu, staff assistant, finance and facilities
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Attachment 1

REQUEST FOR TRUSTEE ACTION
Date:

September 5, 2012

To:

Board of Trustees

From:

Patricia Maguire Meservey, President

Subject:

FY2012-13 General Operations Budget

Requested Action:

Approval

On June 6, 2012, the Board of Trustees approved a 2012-13 pro forma general operations budget
to enable the university to operate at the start of the new fiscal year pending completion of the state
budget process. Since that time the state budget has been enacted, and the administration has
reviewed the assumptions in the pro forma budget, in particular that there would be a supplemental
appropriation to fund mandatory compensation adjustments resulting from collective bargaining.
The proposed final budget is presented in Exhibit 1-A.
The pro forma budget assumed a basic state maintenance appropriation of $34.614 million, which
matched the final appropriation amount. In addition, the state budget funded a compensation
reserve for the state universities to fund the cost of implementing collective bargaining agreements.
Calculations made by the university and confirmed by the Department of Higher Education
indicated that the cost of implementing the agreements would be $2,679,129 to cover adjustments
to salaries paid with state funds. In addition, the state will cover approximately $737,000 in
related fringe benefit expenses. The state recently completed the transfer of the salary amount to
the university’s appropriation.
When the pro forma was prepared, the expense associated with mandatory compensation increases
for locally funded salaries was included because of its impact on student fees. Such expense was not
included for state-funded salaries because the collective bargaining agreements had not been
approved and funded through legislative action. With enactment of the state budget, the collective
bargaining agreements will come into effect, and state funding has been provided. Therefore, the
revenue side of the general operations budget is increased by $2,679,129 from the pro forma level
to reflect the compensation reserve allocation, and the expense side is increased by a like amount to
reflect the cost of the compensation increases. The cost of related fringe benefits is shown below
the line and is not part of the budget to be approved by the trustees because funds for this are paid
by the state directly and do not come to the university as part of its budget. The value of the statepaid fringe benefits is shown in recognition of the state’s support for this expense.
The net effect of these changes is a balanced general operations budget of $103.0 million for the
2012-13 fiscal year.
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MOTION
The Board of Trustees of Salem State University hereby approves the Fiscal Year 2012-13 General
Operations Budget as recommended by the president and described in EXHIBIT 1-A hereto, with
revenues and expenses balanced in the amount of $103 million. The president and other officers of
the university are hereby authorized to do all things and take all actions necessary to implement the
budget and protect the fiscal health of the university.

Committee Assigned:

Finance & Facilities

Committee Action:

Approved

Date of Action:

September 19, 2012

Trustee Action:
Trustee Approval Date:
Effective Date:

Signed:

__________________________________

Title:

__________________________________

Date:

__________________________________
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Revenues & Transfers

$12,115

State Paid Fringe Benefits (est.)

100.00%

66.92%
8.37%
1.47%
4.05%
19.19%

$109,847

$9,530

$100,317

$66,964
7,516
1,752
$4,003
$20,082

$109,847
66.75%
7.49%
1.75%
3.99%
20.02%
100.00%

$113,263

$10,267

$102,996

$69,643
7,516
1,752
$4,003
$20,082

$113,263

$10,267

100.00%

67.62%
7.30%
1.70%
3.89%
19.50%

57.35%
-0.28%
7.99%
34.94%
100.00%

$3,416

$737

$2,679

$2,679
$0
$0
$0
$0

$3,416

$737

$2,679

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$2,679
$2,679

Change

9/19/2012

b) Fringe benefits for salaries paid with state funds are picked up by the state.
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b

a

b

a

Notes

NOTES:
a) Revenue and salary expense increases result from pending state supplemental appropriation transfer from the Compensation Reserve for mandatory
compensation adjustments.

$110,933

$98,818

Trustee Approved Expenditures

Total Expenses

$66,126
8,272
1,452
$4,003
$18,965

$110,933

Salaries
Fringe Benefits
Student Financial Aid
Utilities
General Operating Expenses

Expenses

Total Available Revenue

$9,530

$12,115

State Paid Fringe Benefits (est.)

$102,996

($3,730)

($3,730)

$106,726

$61,207
($298)
$8,524
$37,293

% of
Total

FY13 Proposed Budget
Proposed
Operating

($3,686)
($44)

$100,317

58.83%
-0.29%
8.19%
33.27%
100.00%

% of
Total

($3,686)
($44)

$98,818

$104,047

$61,207
($298)
$8,524
$34,614

Trustee Approved Revenue

57.92%
-0.29%
8.37%
34.00%
100.00%

($2,936)
($44)
($2,980)

$58,958
($298)
$8,524
$34,614
$101,798

Approved
Pro Forma

FY13 Pro Forma Budget

Transfers
Capital Projects
Other
Total Transfers

Net Tuition and Fees
Enrollment Contingency
Other Local
State Appropriation
Revenue before Transfers

Base

% of
Total

FY12 Budget

($ in thousands)

FY2012-13 Proposed Operating Budget

Exhibit 1-A

SUBJECT: Committee on Presidential Review Meeting Report of August 21, 2012
The Presidential Review Committee of the Board of Trustees met Tuesday, August 21, 2012, in
room 204 of Marsh Hall located on the Central Campus of Salem State University.
Present for the Committee were Trustees Abdoo (Chair), Mattera, Quiroga and Segal, Chair of the
Board Scott, and Secretary to the Board Fleischman. Also present and participating in the meeting
were Trustees Davis and Bertrand; President Patricia Maguire Meservey, and Beth Marshall,
Assistant Vice President, Human Resources and Affirmative Action.
Trustee Abdoo called the meeting to order at 6:10 pm.
President Meservey introduced AVP Marshall and invited her to discuss options for the conduct of
the comprehensive presidential review occurring throughout the first half of the coming academic
year. AVP Marshall reviewed the process for conducting a multi-rater review and a potential
timeline, and distributed material (Attachment A) containing background information on the
process and containing the president’s prior annual evaluations for referral.
There was discussion about the ultimate goal of the effort. Trustee Mattera described it as a useful
tool to evaluate strengths or deficiencies. Trustee Segal described the comprehensive evaluation as
an effort by the board to fulfill its continuing responsibility in the hiring process of the president.
President Meservey explained that the final report would be sent to the Department of Higher
Education.
After reviewing the draft open-ended questions contained in the survey instrument distributed by
AVP Marshall, Trustee Quiroga noted that it would be hard to rate responses to such a format. She
also suggested that an outside firm may be able to provide a scale that would allow for weighting or
rating the responses. She also felt that a third party review might be seen as more objective.
Trustee Mattera suggested targeting the reviews, using a less wide series of raters and soliciting
relevant, informed views of the president’s performance rather than focusing on quantity. Trustee
Quiroga asked that Human Resources review consultants, including the firm identified in the
spring. Trustee Mattera noted that an outside consultant would gather the data, but that in the
end, the Board would perform the evaluation. AVP Marshall agreed to follow up on this request
prior to the meeting on September 19th.
At this point, President Meservey and AVP Marshall thanked the committee and excused
themselves from the meeting. The next item on the agenda was the annual review of the president
required by the Department of Higher Education. The committee began by discussing the format
of the self-review provided by the president, upon which the Board’s review has been based.
Trustee Quiroga felt that a better format was possible that would allow for the tracking of goals and
accomplishments, supplemented by subjective narrative. Trustee Mattera suggested that a new
1
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format would allow for the building of a record of performance. Trustee Abdoo concurred, stating
that enhanced evaluation could build a stronger track record for future justification of
compensation increases. He added that graduation rates and other measurements could be standard
items to be taken into consideration.
Trustee Segal reminded the Board that Salem State has the highest percentage of Pell grant eligible
students of the state universities. Trustee Abdoo also noted the diversity of the student population
at Salem State and the large number of non-traditional students. It was agreed that understanding
student demographics would be important to utilizing measures of student success in evaluating the
president’s performance.
Trustee Quiroga felt that the current narrative format informs and provides for discussion but that
more concrete measures were needed. There was discussion about how to begin to put those
measures in place, beginning with goals for AY2012-13. There was also some review of the
information contained in the current self-assessment (Attachment B), including the six-year
graduation rate chart on p.4. The committee concluded that after concluding the annual and
comprehensive evaluations, it should remain active in spring 2013 to develop the template for
presidential evaluation for the coming fall. Going forward, the committee would like the president
to ensure that the goals set forth for the institution are mutually agreed upon with the Board. The
committee would also like the goals to contain measurable parameters.
The committee asked Trustee Abdoo to follow up with President Meservey on these proposed
changes in process and format and to request additional information on outcomes and measurable
goals. The committee also requested to see the template currently used to evaluate the president’s
direct reports (Attachment C).
There being no further business to come before the Committee the meeting was declared
adjourned at 7:16 pm.
Prepared by: J. Fleischman, Secretary to the Board of Trustees
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Attachment C

Non – Unit Professional Administrator
Performance Evaluation Summary
Administrator:

Supervisor:

Title:

Title:

Department:

Review Period:

Date of Appointment:

Date of Evaluation Conference:

The purpose of this evaluation is to assess the effectiveness of the administrator in performing job
responsibilities and to enhance the ability of the administrator to advance the mission of Salem State
College. A key element of this process in the mutual establishment of goals, within the context of the job
description, between the administrator under review and his or her immediate supervisor. This evaluation
instrument will also be used to determine the annual merit pay increase of the administrator.
Section I.
Evaluation of position responsibilities and performances for period of review:
1. Annual goals for this evaluation period are attached.
2. Administrator’s self evaluation of accomplishments for this evaluation period is attached.
3. Administrator’s goals for the next evaluation period are attached.
Section II.
Evaluation of professional skills: Please attach a separate page of narrative
comments addressing the Administrator’s performance in the areas listed A-F below. The
definitions are provided as guidelines and are not intended to be an exhaustive list.
Definitions:
A. Leadership:

The extent to which the administrator exercises sound
judgment, sets a positive example for others, and maintains
high ethical standards.

B. Administrative Functioning:

Planning, organizing, coordinating and problem solving within
the domain of assigned duties. If applicable this factor will
include the quality of the administrator’s supervisory
performance in such areas as support for diversity, subordinate
selection, training, development, unit productivity, unit
contribution to College mission and goals, and quality of work
life.

C. Accomplishment of Specific
Goals and Job Responsibilities:

The extent to which the administrator fulfilled the duties
and responsibilities of his or her assigned job, and any
additional specific performance objectives, as demonstrated in
terms of:
1)
Quality and accuracy of the work produced;
2)
Timeliness in relation to expected or established
schedules;
3)
Effectiveness in working with others;
4)
Completion of tasks within budgetary
allocation;
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5)
6)
7)

Level of productivity
Relevance to College mission/goals;
Communication with members of the College
community.

D. Professional
Expertise/Development:

The administrator’s level of competence and capability
within his or her area of assignment, as noted along the
following dimensions:
1)
Degree of technical expertise/knowledge
demonstrated;
2)
Application of technical expertise/knowledge to
operating duties and problems;
3)
Participation in professional association(s);
4)
Continuing education and demonstration of
scholarship, if applicable;
5)
Problem solving that produces creative, innovative
and workable solutions.

E. College System Service:

The extent and quality of the administrator’s contribution of
constructive effort and attitude to the improvement of the
college, department, profession, and/or the community we
serve.

F. Other Performance Factors:

Additional factors that are unique to the administrator’s
responsibilities, and which cannot be covered by the standard
factors may be identified throughout the rating period, with
review and approval by the Administrative Supervisor.
Examples include: Project management, teamwork,
development and delivery of training opportunities.

G. Supervisor’s Comments:

(Additional comments may be attached.)

_____________________________________
Signature of Supervisor

_______________
Date

_____________________________________
Signature of Non-Unit Administrator

_______________
Date

COMMENTS/RESPONSE OF NON-UNIT ADMINISTRATOR:
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
REVIEWED BY PRESIDENT [or designee as appropriate]:

_____________________________________
Signature of President or designee

_______________
Date
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SUBJECT: Committee on Presidential Review Meeting Report of September 19, 2012

The Presidential Review Committee of the Board of Trustees met Wednesday, September 19,
2012, in room 210 of Marsh Hall located on the Central Campus of Salem State University.
Present for the Committee were Trustees Abdoo (Chair), Mattera, Quiroga and Segal, Chair of
the Board Scott, and Secretary to the Board Fleischman. Also present and participating in the
meeting were Trustees Davis, Scott and Villa, and Beth Marshall, Assistant Vice President,
Human Resources and Equal Opportunity.
Trustee Segal called the meeting to order at 2:01 pm, acting on behalf of Trustee Abdoo who was
participating by phone while en route to campus.
AVP Marshall was asked to present again on the comprehensive presidential review anticipated
by the Board for this academic year. AVP Marshall followed up on the questions presented by
the committee at the August 21st meeting and presented them with three options for consideration
(Attachments A & B). The three contractors presented for consideration were Penson
Associates, Custominsight, and Center for Creative Leadership (CCL). AVP Marshall reviewed
the approaches proposed by each, from in-person interviews to automated on-line feedback, as
well as the varying price structures, also outlined in the attachment.
The first firm discussed, Penson Associates, was the group first contacted by the board in spring
of this year for information on its capabilities in conducting comprehensive reviews. In the
Penson scenario, the consultant researches the institution with material provided by staff and
then conducts several in-person interviews to arrive at the findings that are provided to the
president and the board. The second firm, Custominsight, is a completely on-line provider of
360 review services focusing on the corporate sector. They have a one-time set up fee and a perreviewee cost. The third firm, CCL, was recommended by another consultant currently working
with the university’s leadership team, and also provides on-line services. CCL, however, is led
by the former chancellor of the SUNY System and superintendent of the U.S. Naval Academy,
so they have experience in higher education. Also, the firm seems to focus not on the document
presented at the end, but on what will be done with the findings and how the institution will
advance from them. There is training involved for the person who will be using the data. AVP
Marshall noted that the approach ultimately selected could also end up being used by the
institution in its evaluation of the senior leadership group, making this effort something of a beta
test for the university.
Trustee Quiroga asked if Penson or CCL offered volume discounts in the same manner as
Custominsight. CCL, she felt, presented something of a happy medium approach in that it
provided on-line, quantifiable feedback but also the personal contact to assist in evaluating the
findings. Trustee Mattera shared his experience with 360 evaluations and said that human
involvement and training to allow for interpretation of the data was important; pure online data
collection may be the cheapest approach, but may not necessarily be very meaningful. Trustee
Segal, who had spoken with Penson earlier this year, felt that the firm had been responsive and
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expressed his support for the necessity of good data evaluation as we undertake this effort for the
first time.
AVP Marshall offered the possibility of utilizing one of the on-line vendors and supplementing
its services with qualitative data gathering from either another vendor or in the manner that she
had originally proposed in August. Trustee Segal did not feel that two consultants on one project
was a good idea.
(Note: Trustee Villa joined the meeting at 2:15 pm)
Trustee Scott noted that Penson had not been told that this review with President Meservey could
lead to further business with the firm in the review of the senior leadership. She suggested that
knowledge could affect their price and the board’s decision making. The same could be true for
AGB, which provided a cost estimate earlier this year that was felt to be too expensive. Trustee
Quiroga suggested seeing what other universities recommend with regard to this type of effort.
Also, she was concerned about a conflict as the CCL-recommended review facilitator would be a
university employee. Trustee Mattera agreed that soliciting more creative offers from these
firms would be a good idea. He also stated, however, that with regard to the Penson proposal, he
did not like the approach of soliciting feedback in group situations and always over food, and
asked if AVP Marshall could speak with them about modifying their approach to one-on-ones,
some on the phone, etc.
(Note: Trustee Abdoo joined the meeting in person at 2:25 pm, having been participating by cell
phone up to that point.)
Trustee Scott asked if CCL might be able to provide a neutral survey facilitator, a non-Salem
State person to avoid the conflict issue. Trustee Segal felt it was important to agree on the
approach – qualitative or quantitative – and then discuss the costs. Trustee Abdoo expressed his
support for the Penson approach, stating he did not care for the purely automated effort, but also
stated that he did like the concept of a hybrid approach that combines the two.
Trustee Mattera commented that none of the proposals are perfect. Pure on-line is not the way to
go. CCL is inadequate vis a vis the president, even with the training of the facilitator who is still
an employee of the university. The Penson interaction has value but not if the interviews are
done en masse – could the approach be tailored? Trustee Segal added that the board should
make its choice without consideration of the further use of the firm or approach for evaluating
the senior leadership and to concern itself only with the evaluation of the president.
Trustee Abdoo asked AVP Marshall if she could do a request for information with a short turn
around and have additional information ready for the next meeting of the committee. She stated
that she believed she could.
(Note: Trustee Bertrand joined the meeting at 2:32 pm)
Trustee Mattera stated that he had experience with these efforts at his employer and that he
would share information on other firms with AVP Marshall. Trustee Scott suggested that she
also reach out more to the educational community for further experience. Trustee Segal
suggested she seek more Penson-like approaches. Trustee Quiroga agreed but added that having
an on-line component would be desirable, thereby producing a hybrid. Trustee Abdoo suggested
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revisiting the subject at a meeting in the first week of October, with action by Thanksgiving.
The date of October 3 at 4 pm was agreed upon for the next meeting, site to be confirmed.
There was brief discussion of the AY2012 annual presidential review. Trustee Abdoo solicited
input from the committee. The draft will be discussed at the 10/3/12 meeting.
There being no further business to come before the Committee, upon a motion duly made by
Trustee Mattera and seconded by Trustee Quiroga it was unanimously
VOTED:

To adjourn the meeting at 2:50 pm

Prepared by: J. Fleischman, Secretary to the Board of Trustees
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SUBJECT: Committee on Presidential Review Meeting Report of October 3, 2012

The Presidential Review Committee of the Board of Trustees met Wednesday, October 3, 2012,
in room 210 of Marsh Hall located on the Central Campus of Salem State University.
Present for the Committee were Trustees Abdoo (Chair), Mattera, Quiroga and Segal, Chair of
the Board Scott, and Secretary to the Board Fleischman. Also present and participating in the
meeting was Beth Marshall, Assistant Vice President, Human Resources and Equal Opportunity.
Trustee Abdoo called the meeting to order at 4:10 pm.
Annual Review:
The first item for discussion was the review of the draft of President Meservey’s 2011-12
evaluation by the Board of Trustees. There was discussion of the review’s intent. Trustee
Mattera questioned whether it was intended to justify an adjustment to the president’s
compensation or be used as a more objective coaching document. He asked for clarification of
what the document was meant to accomplish.
Trustee Abdoo responded with expression of his frustration at the board’s inability to extend
compensation that is reflective of the president’s experience and accomplishments and
commensurate with that extended to the presidents of the University of Massachusetts system.
Trustee Scott offered that the annual review process requires the board to look at the president’s
performance. She noted that past reviews have been glowing. But basically, the state is
requiring that the board examine the president on an annual basis. The president’s
compensation, she felt, was another matter.
Trustee Quiroga agreed that the president is under compensated, but also noted that the
document is not an in-depth review. She felt, for example, that the original statement of
objectives needed to be more measurable and quantifiable. Trustee Abdoo reported that he has
consulted with President Meservey about re-drafting the 2012-13 goals and objectives. There
was discussion about the Board’s role in helping with the redraft, capping off with the
comprehensive review.
Trustee Segal suggested that a critical look at the self-assessment would be appropriate. Trustee
Mattera felt that the president’s goals have been stated generally and that the board’s response in
this document could be general as well. The 360, comprehensive review, however, will seek to
get at a deep measurement of the president’s leadership skill. He felt there should be mention of
this comprehensive effort in the annual review (Attachment A).
There was a discussion about the process of how the report would be amended and shared with
the committee. The review of the draft appraisal continued.
Trustee Mattera asked that more specific information about the comprehensive campaign be
included in the section addressing the president’s performance in that area to provide context.
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Trustee Quiroga made a similar request with regard to the marketing and public relations section,
noting that mention of the new vice president should be included, among other things. She also
made specific recommendations with regard to the section on financial stability. Trustee
Quiroga asked that indicators of disciplined management such as data on the university’s
expenditures compared to budget and its comparative cost of attendance be included in the
section.
Trustee Scott noted that “financial stability” and “external affairs” were not goals in the selfassessment and asked that they be treated differently than the actual goals in the review. A
paragraph introducing these two “key areas of efforts” will be inserted.
With no further amendments to the review draft to be made from the committee, Trustee Abdoo
called for a motion to recommend the review as amended.
Upon a motion duly made by Trustee Mattera, seconded by Trustee Quiroga, it was unanimously
VOTED:
The Presidential Review Committee hereby recommends to the Salem State
University Board of Trustees the 2011-12 Annual Review of President
Patricia Maguire Meservey as amended.
AVP Marshall joined the meeting at 5:16 pm. AVP Marshall was asked to present again on the
comprehensive presidential review anticipated by the Board for this academic year. She began
by reviewing the latest contacts with potential vendors. Her follow up with Penson resulted in a
revised proposal that addressed the needs and concerns of the board and a reduced price. The
firm referred by Trustee Mattera – PDI Ninth House – provided a proposal based on qualitative
interviews and originally included extensive post-review work with the president in the form of
coaching/mentoring (Attachment B). AVP Marshall requested a revised quote that did not
contain these latter services (Attachment C).
Trustee Abdoo repeated the inquiry from earlier meetings on whether other schools had
undergone similar exercises. AVP Marshall reported that feedback from colleagues around the
state indicated that they had not. Trustee Quiroga reminded AVP Marshall of the board’s
interest in renewing contact with AGB and inquiring into their services with the additional
information now available with regard to project scope. Trustee Scott shared that she has also
been in contact with potential vendors who have shown initial interest and that she will put them
in touch with AVP Marshall for follow up.
Trustee Quiroga expressed the opinion that as this will be a large investment for the institution,
she believes that academic experience is important knowledge for the ultimate choice to possess.
There was discussion of setting the criteria for vendor selection. Trustee Mattera discussed the
firms under consideration and noted that perhaps leadership is constant across industry sectors.
Trustee Quiroga noted that leadership is different from one sector to another and that sector
knowledge is important to note. Trustee Abdoo stated his preference for having someone not
focused solely on education and it was agreed that there was a need to set the criteria for vendor
selection. Trustee Abdoo suggested a timeline for making a choice before the holidays to allow
AVP Marshall to execute a contract and proceed before the spring semester has progressed too
far. He also asked her to obtain the follow up information from the AGB by the time of the full
board meeting on Wednesday, October 10 – which she agreed to attempt to do.
There being no further business to come before the Committee, upon a motion duly made by
Trustee Segal and seconded by Trustee Mattera it was unanimously
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VOTED:

To adjourn the meeting at 5:50 pm

Prepared by: J. Fleischman, Secretary to the Board of Trustees
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SUBJECT: Executive Committee Meeting Report of August 21, 2012
The Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees met Tuesday, August 21, 2012, in room 204 of
Marsh Hall located on the Central Campus of Salem State University.
Present for the Committee were Trustees Scott (Chair), Abdoo (Co-Chair), Mattera, Quiroga and
Segal; President Meservey (Committee Liaison); Executive Vice President Cahill and Secretary to the
Board Fleischman. Also present: Trustees Bertrand and Davis.
Chair Scott called the meeting to order at 4:04 pm.
Chair Scott began by reviewing the agenda. She discussed the various issues that prompted the by-law
review starting last spring. At the time, a by-law committee was appointed, however after convening it
was decided that the current by-laws place the authority for by-law modification with the Executive
Committee. As a result, the activity was moved to the Executive Committee, where it will remain
until it is considered by the full board. (Attachment A) There was discussion of the various proposed
by-law revisions.
Number of meetings: The by-law change related to reducing the number of full board meetings from
four to five prompted discussion around the flow of board work. President Meservey explained that
analysis of the board schedule has shown that the flow of work at the university does not support the
need for a full board meeting in November. After the final budget and audit are approved, typically at
the October meeting, the next business requiring full board attention is preparation of the annual
budget after the release of the governor’s budget in late January. While committee meetings could be
maintained on members calendars and be held at the discretion of the committee chairs, the November
meeting could be eliminated and the number of meetings in the by-laws reduced from five to four.
Note: Trustee Abdoo joined the meeting at 4:30 pm.
Committees and their charges: Next, there was discussion on the various changes proposed to the
committees and their charges. It has been proposed that the Institutional Advancement Committee will
have Marketing and Communications added to its scope to allow it to address a broader range of issues
affecting the public face of the university beyond just fund raising. Trustee Quiroga asked whether
there was a need for an advancement committee given the Foundation’s responsibility for the campaign.
President Meservey responded that a clearer picture of the range of subjects to be covered by this
committee would be helpful in drawing a distinction between the Foundation and an advancement
committee. The trustees have a fiduciary responsibility with regard to fundraising even though there is
a foundation, providing the committee with an important role. Trustee Quiroga agreed on the trustees’
necessary role in advancement but felt clarity was needed on how the board collaborates with the
Foundation. The President added that the Marketing and Communications function would be focused
primarily on branding and positioning of the institution rather than on individual programmatic activity.
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Another committee with an expanded charge under consideration was the Risk Management and Audit
Committee, formerly the Audit Committee. There was discussion about legal matters being brought
under the purview of both this committee and the Executive Committee. Trustee Abdoo expressed
concern about the responsiveness of the board in urgent matters if required to submit to review by two
committees. Trustee Quiroga added concern about confusion between the two committees over which
was responsible for specific issues as they arose. It was determined that the roles of the two committees
would differ: Risk Management and Audit would oversee more routine legal matters while Executive
Committee would be involved with the more urgent and significant legal matters involving the
university. Further, it would be the responsibility of the Risk Management and Audit Committee chair
or vice chair, in conjunction with committee staff, to ensure that matters that require the attention of
the Executive Committee are brought forward in a timely manner.
In a discussion of the number of standing committees, Trustee Mattera stated that by better defining the
standing committees, the board could reduce the specific responsibilities of the Executive Committee.
President Meservey agreed, noting that the Executive Committee has the responsibility to act on behalf
of the board. She added that by housing risk management in a committee, it, too, is a vehicle to act
when the full board cannot assemble.
Non-trustee members: In the matter of allowing non-trustee members on board committees,
Trustee Mattera recommended that they be advisory rather than voting members. Chair Scott reviewed
the rationale for including non-trustee members (i.e.: small board, opportunity to have more voices at
the table, bring potential future members into contact with university, expand circle of institutional
friends). There was general agreement to the approach and to the advisory nature of the non-trustee
membership.
Upon a motion duly made by Trustee Mattera, seconded by Trustee Quiroga, it was
VOTED: The Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees of Salem State University
recommends that the Board approve the By Laws as amended in Attachment A.
(EX-13-01)
The motion passed with Trustees Mattera, Quiroga, Scott and Segal voting in the affirmative and
Trustee Abdoo voting “Present.”
Committee Assignments and Schedule: There was then review of proposed committee
assignments and the proposed committee meeting schedule (Attachments B and C). Trustee Abdoo
provided historic context for the evolution of the committee schedule. Trustees Abdoo, Mattera and
Quiroga expressed some concern with the midday start time for the series of consecutive meetings, a
departure from the 2011-12 schedule. It was agreed that a revised schedule would be ready for
discussion at the 9/19/12 meeting.
9/19 Agenda Review: Chair Scott began a discussion of the agenda for the organizational meeting to
be held on September 19, 2012 with a review of the outside-the-board projects that trustees were
currently serving on, including: Trustee Davis/AGB Student Learner Outcomes Project; Trustee
Segal/Foundation Board and Campaign Committee; and Trustee Mattera/Campaign Committee. The
meeting, she explained, has multiple purposes: to lay the groundwork for the course of the year as a
board; to outline/review major initiatives; and to review the role of the board (Attachment D). Chair
Scott also expressed a hope that discussion could take place on how to streamline the business at
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meetings to allow the board to address substantive issues. President Meservey explained that
committee liaisons have been asked to prepare 1-2 page handouts for the board giving an overview of
the committee and summarizing the top agenda items from the last year along with the primary issues
for the year ahead. Trustee Mattera requested that the liaisons be in contact with the committee chairs
in preparing these handouts.
Reviewed Personnel Action: Scott James: President Meservey reviewed the context in which the
personnel action involving Associate Vice President Scott James was being proposed, including the need
for the risk management function, the additional responsibilities for Executive Vice President Cahill,
and the realignment of Student Life with Enrollment Management (Attachment E). In addition,
academic advising, now housed in enrollment management, will transfer to the provost’s office as will
students with disabilities services, now currently under student life.
Trustee Abdoo inquired into the budgetary implications of the promotion. The president explained that
she planned to extend a $15,000 increase to Dr. James as a result of these increased responsibilities and
in keeping with the salary range of the other vice presidents. There are no other salary adjustments
planned related to the action, although there could be additional administrative support needed in the
risk management division in the next 1-2 years. The president explained that the timing of the request
was related to EVP Cahill’s illness this past spring and the desire that he be fully recovered before
implementing the realignment. The president would like to have the promotion accomplished before
the beginning of the academic year, hence the proposed vote by the Executive Committee rather than
by the full board in October.
Trustee Segal asked about the comparative number of non-unit positions at the university in the last five
years. The president reminded the committee that the university eliminated 50+ administrative
positions in 2009 as part of a restructuring, 26 through layoffs. A few positions have since been filled,
but the net is still below pre-2009 levels. Trustee Quiroga suggested that an analysis of staffing requires
more than just a review of the number of positions. Chair Scott concurred, stating that a true analysis
would require an understanding in the differences in the institution over that 5-year time period.
Trustee Mattera stated that he felt it was the prerogative of the president to promote individuals.
Upon a motion duly made by Trustee Mattera, seconded by Trustee Segal, it was unanimously
VOTED: The Executive Committee of the Salem State University Board of Trustees
hereby accepts the recommendation made by President Meservey for the
promotion of Dr. Scott James to the position of Vice President, Enrollment
Management and Student Life; effective immediately. (EX-13-02)
President Meservey thanked the Executive Committee for their support.
Informational items:
-Mainstage Theatre renovation is in the schematic design phase. The university will need to look at
bridge funding next summer. The proposal will be brought through Finance & Facilities and will borrow
against the Foundation’s assets per a Division of Capital Asset Management requirement.
-Master Visioning 2040 is underway. Board represented by Trustees Quiroga and Scott. Group began
meeting on August 1. (Attachment F)
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-Association of Governing Boards (AGB) Assessment of Student Learning: Salem State has been invited
to participate along with ten other institutions. Trustee Davis will represent the Board on a team that
will include President Meservey, Provost Esterberg, Associate Provost DeChillo and Director of
Institutional Effectiveness and Planning. The first meeting is in Washington, DC at the end of
September. (Attachment G)
In closing, President Meservey noted the need to schedule a meeting of the Finance & Facilities
Committee for the purpose of voting on the final FY2012-13 operating budget. She suggested this
meeting might be accomplished around the time of the board meeting on either September 19, 2012 or
October 10, 2012. The president indicated she would consult with Trustee Quiroga, chair of the
committee, about the matter.
There being no further business to come before the Committee, Chair Scott declared the meeting
adjourned at 5:59 pm.
Prepared by: J. Fleischman, Secretary to the Board of Trustees

4

Executive 8.21.12

Executive 8.21.12

Executive 8.21.12

Executive 8.21.12

Executive 8.21.12

Executive 8.21.12

Executive 8.21.12

Executive 8.21.12

Executive 8.21.12

Executive 8.21.12

Executive 8.21.12

Executive 8.21.12

Executive 8.21.12

Executive 8.21.12

Executive 8.21.12

Executive 8.21.12

Executive 8.21.12

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
January 16, 2013 – 5:00 p.m.
Martin Luther King Conference Room, Ellison Campus Center, North Campus
Salem State University
Salem, Massachusetts
- AGENDA I.

Call to Order

II.

New Business


- Real Estate Acquisition Opportunity



- Real Estate Development Opportunity



- Other

III. Adjournment

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
January 16, 2013

PRESENT: Trustees Bertrand, Mattera, Quiroga, Scott (Chair), Segal, and Villa; President
Meservey; Executive Vice President Cahill and Secretary to the Board Fleischman. Participating
remotely by phone: Trustees Abdoo (Vice Chair) and Lancome.
ABSENT: Trustees Ansara, Berkowitz and Davis.
Individuals also present and participating in the meeting: Vice President for Enrollment
Management and Student Life Scott James; and Vice President for Finance & Facilities Andrew
Soll.
The provisions of General Laws, Chapter 30A, having been complied with and a quorum of the
Board being present, the Board of Trustees of Salem State University held a special meeting in
Ellison Campus Center, Martin Luther King Conference Room, North Campus, Salem,
Massachusetts, on January 16, 2013, with Pamela C. Scott, Chair, presiding.

*
I.

*

*

CALL TO ORDER

Call to Order

Chair Scott called the meeting to order at 5:09 p.m.
*
II.

*

*

NEW BUSINESS
New Business

Chair Scott announced that the matters for discussion under New Business related to real estate
acquisitions and development opportunities and that discussing them in open session would
compromise the university’s competitive position. Therefore, the Board would go into Executive
Session for these discussions and would come back into session for the purpose of adjourning as
there was no further business on the agenda.
In addition, as Trustees Abdoo and Lancome were participating remotely by telephone, Chair Scott
confirmed with each trustee that he was participating alone, in keeping with Open Meeting Law
requirement. Trustee Abdoo and Trustee Lancome both confirmed that they were alone.
Upon a motion duly made by Trustee Mattera and seconded by Trustee Quiroga, a roll call vote
was taken at 5:11 p.m. to go into Executive Session.
Voting in the Affirmative: Abdoo, Bertrand, Lancome, Mattera, Quiroga, Scott, Segal and Villa.
Voting Against: None
Note: Trustee Lancome left the meeting at 6:10 p.m.
Following the Executive Session, the Board returned to regular session. There being no further
business to come before the Board, the chair called for a motion to adjourn.
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*
III.

*

*

ADJOURNMENT
Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the Board and on a motion duly made by Trustee
Villa and seconded by Trustee Segal, it was unanimously
VOTED:

To adjourn the meeting at 7:03 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Patricia Maguire Meservey
President

Jean E. Fleischman
Secretary to the Board of Trustees
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